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As required by the ASIC benchmark on liguidity, in estimating cash fiows, the Manager can take into account 8 reasorable estimate of
investor inflows and sutflows based on previous experisnce. Withdrawals are considered with reference to the period within which investers
would reasonably expect withdrawal requests ic be processed, rather than the maximum period within which the Manager is able to process
withdrawai requests. In order to profect all investraants, the Manager has suspended withdrawals, with the exception of those approved under
hardship provisions and feeder fund payments for distributions and expenses as the cashilow allows,

Lending Policies and Procedures of the Fund

Credit Committee

The Credit Committee is integral to the compliance and risk management processes willised by the Manager with respect to the selection
of registered first morgage assets for the Fund. The Credit Committee is an itemal review committes for af mortgage investments and is
independent fom all ather depanments, The Credit Committee calls for coliaboration of & broad base of expertise from the property, finance,
legal and accounting seciors when evaluating mortgage assets for the Fund. The forrmal structure and collatarative decision making process
provided by the Cradit Committee ensures an informed assessment and objective decision is made when selecting the first morigage assets
of the Fund.

New mongage investment proposals are put forward by the commercial lending department for consideration with & wiitien summary. The
Credit Committee is responsible for setting the primary terms and conditions tpon which subsequent approval will be based.

When morigage investment proposals are completed in accordance with the Manager's credit standards they are required to be fnally approved
by the Credit Committea.

Lending Crteria of the Fund

#  The Manager has determined and documented lending policies for the approval and management of morigages. Risk managemen is
a priority, with morgages diversified over a number of fevels including geographic locafion, seclor, ioan size, interest rate and maturiy
profile.

B One of the tools the Manager employs 1o enhance income into the Fund is to balanee the assets of the mortgage portiolio belween
commercial loans and seledtive development loans,

#  The fype of real estate offered for security must be acceptable to the Manager. Typical mortgage securfies wilf include commercial,
industrial and residential real estate (including development Ioan_s acioss these sectors) secured by a registered first mongage. A fist
morigage must be registered on the primary securily properly. However, from time to time the Manager may subordinate the priarity of a
first mortgage as part of a structured exit strategy for a loan. .

2 The value of the secunity praparty must be established i acoordance with the valuations poiicy of the Manager.

The ability of the biomower to service the facifity must be established to the satistaction ofthe Manager,

» To the extent that they may affect the value or performance of an underying investment the Manager may take info account fabour
standards, or environmental, social or ethical considerations when making, retaining or realising an investment in the Fund. The Manager
kas no predetenmined view about how far such matiers will be taken into aceount, and the Manager wili make a determination on such
issues on a case by case basis.

Lending Policies and Procedures
The Manager will be selective in fis choice of morigages and wili adhere to prutient lerding-panameters: The Fund will folow strict lending
policies and procedures as detailed below:-

[ Assessment of the borrower - the Manager endeavours 1o meet every bormower i assess character and business acurnen;

b The maximum loan amount for any one borrower generaily does not exceed 10% of the scheme assets;

#  Allmortgages are subject to the Manager's rigorous due difigence process inciuding epprovai by the Manager's Credit Committee:

¢ Thedue diigence process includes assessment of the financial capacity of the borrower and any guarantors, The assessment is carried
out by review and substantiation of assets, fiabilities and income by reference to information provided by the bosrower and independent
searches and checks;

#  Afirst morgage Is always registered on property held as the primary security, hawever, from fime to fime the Manager may subordinate
the prority of a first mortgage as part of a structured exit strategy for 2 lean;

»  Commercial loans are loans secured by income producing property. Non-commercial toans {(not secured by income producing property}
include construction/development loans and pre-development land. The capacity io service commarial loans is assessed primarily by
reference to income preduced from the security property, however income from al sources is also considered. The capacily to setvice
construction loans is primarily dependent on the viability of the project, the project cash flow {includfing interest commitments) and all
Tactors relevant to the project including valuation of the completed product, praduct demand, pre-sales contracts, marketing strategies,
certified project costings, credentials of the borrower, bulider and key sub-contractors:

& The Manager has every securily property valued by orie of the Manager's pane! valuers or by a valuer meeting the Manager's standards
for inclusion on is panel and adhering to the Manager's valuation policies. Further details in relation to the Manager's valuation pelicies
are outlined below under the heading “Valuation Policies™
The Manager has a policy of diversifying morgage securities geographically and by praperty type;

The Manager has a policy of generally not exceeding the foflowing loan {o valuation ratios -

G 85.67% for construction and development loans; and

o 75% for commercial ioans;

However, i is the Manager's current practice to €xceed those ratios wherever necessary in the process of working through a repayment
solution.

The Credit Comsmittee will consider the appropriate loan to valuation ratio based on afl the faciors suneunding the loan;
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» The constitution of the Fund affows the Manager to lend funds provided that alt morigages are secured over properly and the amount
which may be advanced to a borrower does not exceed an LVR of 75% of the value of the securtty property on initiaf setllernent. After &
loan has settied and where the Manager considers it is in the best interests of the members of the Fund, the Manager may anprove an
LVR not to exceed 85% of the value of the security property, The LVR of 2 boan {hat is in default may exceed B5%. This could ocour for
example, where interest is being capitalised while the security property is being marketed and sold, or where the Manager determines that
expenditure should be incurred to improve the security properiy prior o sale {the Mznager considers a loan to be in default when interest
payments have not been recaived In breach of the loan agreemert, or the loan tem has expired without repayment of principal);

b The following additional requirements are imposed in the case of gevelopment loans:-

@ For development/construction lans the initial drawdown for {he facility is arived at after considering both the approved loan to
vaiuation ratio on the “as i&” valuation and the ‘cost o complete” formuta. The initial crawdown must meet the loan lo valuation ratio
reguired and also allow sufficient funds to be avaltable in the facility to compiete the development. The project feasibility must reflect
the “cost to complete” formula throughout the e of the projedt. The concept of a *cost tn complete” formuta is that the fender always
relains sufficient funds within the loan facility to complete the development based on s gssessment of tha actusl cosl to compiete
the praject. The Manager engages an extemal consuhtant Quartity Surveyor for each project and receives perindic repors on the
progress of the project including centification of construction claims basad on work complated;

& Additional development loan procedures are required throughout the development stages of the ioan to ensure the development i
adequately monitored;

& Where appiicable a triparfite agreement is made between the Manager, the borrower and the bufder. This enables the Manager, in
the event of default by the borower, fo deal directly with the builder,

Valuation Policies

Allreal property assets of the Fund are required 1o be vaiued prior to settiernent of each ransaction. Valustions may only be carried out by the
Manager's panel valuers or by a valuer meeting the Manager's standards for inciusion en its panel and must adhere to the Manager's valuation
guidetines. The Manager has determined and documented valuation review procedures for quidance on each valusation,

Members of the valuation pane! are appointed and removed in accordance with the Mahager’s valuation panel appointment guidelines, The
Manager is responsible for approving the appointment of removal of a panel valuer,

The Manager, in accordance with its valuations review guidelines is responsible for the review of all valuations. Unresolved issuas arising from
a review must be referred to an executive directar for discussion and determination,

As n intemal checking mechanism, anindependent property report is obtained (where appropriate) from two reat estate agents or an atemnate
valuers report whase normal trade area encompasses the property being valued.

Valuers selected by the Manager to parform relevant valuations onthe secunty propeny are chosen based on independence, specialis! industry
expertise and geographic ocation.

The Manager only uses valuers who, where possible, are registersd under cne ofthe statefierritory valuer registration regimes and who include
a statemenrt in their valuation reports oh whether the valiation complies with alt relevant industry standards and codes.

The Manager does net accept vaiuations performed on the insinuction of barrowers, The Manager requires that valuations be provided on the
Manager's instructions, or that yaluers canfimy thet their valuations adhere to the Manager's requirements.

The valuer must have appropriate professional indemnity insurarce.
The valuer must certify that they are independent of both the berrawer and security propedy.
Atinitial sattiemert, the valuation relied on must not be dated mote than 3 months prior to sefflement.

An updated valuation wifl generally be required for commercial loans at 24 month intervals and construction loane at 12 months intervals, An
updated valuation may aiso be required where a boan term is extended or a loan is otherwise varied. The raquirement for an updated valuation
may be waived where the Manager considers thal an updated vafuation would serve no useful purpose (e.g. where it is demonstrable that
property vaiues have increased or not changed in the tocality of the property, where a property under canstruction is significantly presold, where
a commercial property has long term leases in place, where a sale or refinance is imminent, whare the lcan te valuation ratic of the property is
low or where the Manager does not consider that any purposs would be served by oblaining & vaiuafion 2t the relevani lime).

Development Valuations
Separate valuations (may be within the one valuation repot) are required in relation to “as is” and ‘on completion” vaitations.

Appropriate instructions must be given to the valuer having regard o the type of valustion required. In particular the instructions indicate the
type of valuation reguired eg. “as is” or “on complefion”.

“As 1™ Valuation

The “as is” valuation isthe market valuation of the propesty af the time of the initial drawdown, A “feasibilty analysis” is undertaken including
demofifion, subdivision, constiuction, and cther development costs, altewanoes for sales ard marketing experses, interest and an alfowance
for profit and risk to arive af a base value for the land. Any such analysis is based on the premise that the gevelopment approvat has or will be
oblained prior to sefliement of the loan. Altematively, the valuation musi contain an adiustment for any unceriainty attaching to the development
approvat process. The requirement for & feasibifty analysis may be safisfied, if appropriate, using altemate techniques such as discounted
cash flows. Additionally a cress check valuation method is employed evaluating comparable sales evidence. The loan to vatuation ratic in is
case must fall within the Mareiger's lending criteria,
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“On Compietion” Valuation
The "o completion” value is the market value of the property at the completion of development. The valuation methodology required is 4 "gross
reafisation” valuation based on comparable sales andior leass evidance for the individual components e.g, houses, units, allotments etc.

The Manager will reasorably assess the appropristeness of the feasibility analysis within the valuer's repott by comparison with cost estimates
provided by a competent external quantity surveyor selected frem the Maneger's panel.

The ‘o completion® valte is the valuation figure used in the cost to complete calculations during the development phase, The “on complstion”
value may be revised during the term of development to reflect changes as approved by the Manager.

Arvears Management
The Manager has documented arrears management processes which are implemented i the event that a mortgage ioan goes into defaull.
Arrears loans are managed by a team of experienced persornel. The documented processes include the foliowing;

»  Dishonoured payments or other defaults are referrad to the Arrears Manager for actioning. The Arrears Manager immediately cortacis the
borower to ascertain the drcumstances of the default;

3 if the default is shor ferm, armangements are made with the borrower to remedy the defaut;
i the defaut is long term, a summary of the natwre of the default is emailed to the Arrears Committee with recommendaticns;

3 The Arears Committee is comprised of the Executive Direclors, the Portfalio Manager, the Risk Manager, the Arears Manager and
members of the Cammerdial Lending Department as appropriate;

> The Arrears Commitiee meets at least weekly. The Arrears Committee considers the recommendations for arrears loans and supervises
the preparation of an amears managemerdt plan for each arrears loan, Given the nature of loans within the toan portfolic, the Manager
adopts a case by case approach 1o arears management, reflected in the individual management plans for sach arrears loan;

Managemer plars are implemented by the Arrears Marager who maistains a separate arrears file for each arrears isan;
Reporls on arrears loans are prepated and presented at Arrears Committee meetings. Management plans are considered and updated
as necessary;

» in the formutation of 8 management pfan the Arrears Committes considers the following factors:-
& Current vajue of the security property;

Whether an updated valuation ought to be obtained;

Current lcan amount; ‘

Current foan {o valuation ratio;

Areview of securities held,

Areview of insurances heid;

issue of default notices;

For commercial lpans:-

> terancy stalus;

® For construction loans:-

> slatus of construction;

> costio complets;

> sales achieved;

> review of presales;

Current marketing andfor sales programs;

Credii assessment of the bomower and any guarantors;

Whether demands ought to be issued to any guarantors;

Any proposal by the borrower to remedy the default;

Status ol any second or subsequent mortgages and status of priority armangements;

Desirability of taking possession or appointing a receiver or agent for the mongagee;

Compiiance with statutory requirements (eg lodgement of notices, maintenance of contralier aceounts),

Any site-specific issues (eg planning, subdivision, contamination or heritage status);

Potentiat sales avenues;

Whether sales agent ought to be appointed/selection of agent;

S For all anears loans, a detailed recoverabilily analysis is prepared and updated on a weekiy basis as par of the arrears management plan;

3 External consultants (vaiuers, lawyers, insalvency practiioners, sales corsuttants elc) are engaged where appropriate throughout the
arcears Managomer process;

¥ The Manager may from time to time foreclose on a security property as part of a reatisation strateqy, Foreclosure is a remedy available o
a registered mortgagee by which the mortgagee becomes the absolute legal owner of the property free of any interest of the mortgagor. In
the event of foreclosure, the Manager may hold, improve andfor sefl the security property in order to achieve the best result for the Fund.
The Manager may sel! a property on which # hes forecinsed to a refated entity, in which case the sale price will be defermined by valuation.

Arrears loans are managed in this way until the security is sold andior afl possibie recovery action has been completed,

& 2 & @ & 2 @

® & & 2 2 O ®B B 8 @

As a mechanism of capital recovery from time to time the Manager may subordinate the priority of 2 first muorgage as part of & structured exit
strategy for a loan.
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Related Partios

Broadly, the definition of ‘related party® includes a controlfing entity, company or person of LM Investment Managemert Ltd {"LM"}, a public
company. Tis fiters through alt funds managed by LM, and any directors. This Fund has no loans to any LM directors, investor disciosure
guidelines are designed to enswe that investors are aware of any interaclion with transactions between differart funds or where a direcior or
other related party, including another fund, derives a financial beneft.

Aswell as providing best practice disclosure of all related party transactions, the guidelines further ensure the Manager is accouniable interms
of the management and monitaring of any related party ransactions. It is especially important that where there is a related party somehow
involved, that the transaction is evaluated ffom a due difigence ang credit assessment procese, as rebustly as if it were not a relaled pary
transaction. Ongoing robust moriforing of these transactions must also be demonstrated. -

The Fund may lend to related parties provided the toans are approved by the Credit Cemmittee an commercial, arms-lengthterms, They must
then be approved af &i| Board level, and are subject to review by the Board.

The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving the structure and probily of commercial dealings between the manager and any related
parties and for ensuring any such trensactions are approved only and after taking inte consideration the Manager's Conflists of Interests Palicy,
Fees issued to the account of the Fund by retated parties, which are recoverable from the Fund, must be an commercial arms-length terms
and are subject 1o review by the Board.

Foliowing are the related party transactions within this Fund:-

& Since inception of LM Investment Management Lid, LM Administration Pty Lid tmis been engaged by LM Investment Managemert Lid
to provide administration services at 3 commercial fee. LM Administration Pty Ltd also provides administration and funds management
services to the Fund and directly receives a manuagement fee from the Fund for that service. LM Administration Pty Lid alsa provides
administration services at a commercial fee to Managhan Lawyers, a law firm that provides legal services to the Fund, Peter Drake, a
director of LM, is the beneficial owner of LM Administration Pty {td,

b John O'Sulivan, an executive director of the Manager is the beneficial owner of O'Sullivan Capital Management [4d. O'Suflivan Capital
Management L'd has been engaged by LM Investment Management Lid to provide marketing services in New Zealand & a commercial
amns-length fee. This fee is paid by the Fund.

»  The LM Managed Performance Fund, a related investment fund, has a debt owing to the Fund of $30,335,807 at a rate of T%pa, for the
assignment of two (2} first registered mortgages. The debt is secured by a fixed and fleating charge over the assets of the LM Managed
Performance Fund, This loan constitttes 5.36% of the tota! lan portfolio.

» The LM Managed Perfermance Fusid, @ related investment fund, has guaranteed $3,600,000 of a loan due by & Borower to this Fund,
in exchange for that Borrower making those funds available to the LM Managed Performance Fund and an associate of that fund, The
interest rate on that loan is 7%pa and i equatesto 1.70% of this fund's total loan portictio,

[ Ors 30 June 2008, the Manager assigned to the LM First Mortgage Income Fund, the rights ant benefis of a debt due {e the Manager
fram the LM Managed Performance Fund. The debt originaily of $5,100,000 is now reduced to $1 828,700, The date for the repayment
of that debt to the LM First Mortgage income Fund has been extended to 30 June 2011, The cumrent interest raie pavabie on this amount
is 10%pa and the debt equates to 0.32% of the total loan portfolic.

& The Fund has made 3 foans to various related parties, which tofal $19,616,088, The Manager has received establishmert fees of not
more than 1.5% of the total loan amount, The interest rales for these loans are commercial rates and rangs from 10.5% - 11%pa. These
lnans eguate to 3.47% of the total loan portfolio,

» Aloan may be repaidiexitedirealised as cash through its whale o partial assignment, The Fund may assign the whole or part of a lban
to other funds managed by LM as the Responsible Entfty. The Fund has assigned $5,205,500 of one of its loans fo the LM Australian
Income Fund - Currency Protected for a cash consideration of the same amount. When the Fund assigns part of these loans 1o other
funds managed by LM, the Fund may subardinate its first prionity mottgage. The Fund has does so in refation to the assignment to the |LM
Australian Income Fund - Currency Protected,

Related Party Finance

LM is the Manager of the LM Managed Performance Fund. The LM Managed Performance Fund, in its own right, has second mortgages
behind loans that are first mortgages of the LM First Mortgage income Fund. At 30 June 2010 the LM Managed Perfotmance Fund holds B
such second morgages in the total amount of $44 287,749, in each instance the LM First Mortgage Income Furd has entered into a Friotity
Deed to protect its own first mortgage position with the borrewer as part of nomat loan documentation procedures.
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PORTFOLIO UPDATE AS AT 30 JUNE 2010
Assets of the LM First Mortgage Income Fund

» Adiversified portfolio of Austrafian registered mortgages over commercial, residential, industrial, retall ard vacart kand; and
b interest Dearing cash investments

LM First Mortgage income Fund Asset Allocation

¥ Registered First Mortgage Securities §7.01%
] Registered Second Morigage Securiies 1,60%*
B Cash& Cash Equivaients 1.39%

" As partof a structured exit strategy for a loan the Manager may subordinate the priority of a firet morigage. As at 30 June 2010 there is one loan which has
been subordinated as an exit and recovery strategy. The total amount of the lean fs $9,205,380 and the combined first and second loans constiuie 55% of the
value of the property el as security,

Asset Allocation Guidelines No. of Loans Value {$) Actual (%)
Registered First Mortgage Securities 38 556,614,005 ar o
Registered Second Mortgage Securities 1 9,205,230 160
Cash & Cash Equivalents /A 7857203 1.39

LM First Mortgage income Fund Sector Diversification

O Commercial 17 36%
B Residential 61.66%
[ Industrial 14.44%

Pending Development Land 6.54%
[ Retall C.00%
Sector Guidelines No. of Loans Vatue {$) Actual {%)
Commercial 1t 88,242,874 17.38
Residential 22 B E74,105 6166
industrial 3 81,720,064 14.44
Pending Development Land 4 38982212 654
Retail 0 0 080

LM First Mortgage income Fund Construction, Development and Other Mortgage Securities

7} Other Martgage Securities 79.16%
B Construction & Development Morigage Securities 20.84%

Construction, Development and Other Guidelines Ho. of Loans Value ($) Actual (%)
Construction and Development Mortgage Securilies 8 117,942 074 20.84
Other Marigege Securities* K3 447877 181 79.16

* Other Martgage Securities inciudes pending development land, complated deveiopments and commercial loans.,

LM First Mertgags Income Fund Geographic Diversification

. | New South Wales 28.84% {3 Westem Australiz 6.92%

) ‘ {7 Austraitan Capia! Territory 1.39% . | Notthem Tentory 0.00%

g Vietornia 6.22% B Tesmania 0.62%
k/ " [ Gumensland 56.01% T ScuthAustralia 0.00%
Secior Guidelines No, of Loans Value (§)
New South Wales 14 163,198 274
Victora 4 BI04 133
Queensiand 15 316900913
South Australia 0 4]
Ausirsiian Capital Teritory 3 7,849,604
Westem Australia 3 39,141 318
Northern Termtory o 0
Tasmania i 356013
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LM First Mortgage Income Fund Portfolio Details as at 30 June 2010

Mortgage Portiolio Detatls Actual
‘Total value of mongage secunties $565,819,255
Number of mortgages 39
Average loan sze $14,590,000
Average loan to valuation ratio 86.56%
Total value of leans with interest built into the facility andior caphalised $514,996 552
Number of loans with interest buill into the facilty and/or capitalised k]
Total vahse of undrawn foan commitments over next 24 manths (progressive oan draws) 1,600,000
functed by cashfiows of the Fund

Number of ioans with undrawn loan commitments over next 24 months {progressive [ban draws) 1
funded by cashfiows of the Fund

Average monthly undrawn loan commitments funded by cashflows of the Fund $400.000

The valuation poficy for the Fund's mengage securities is written into the lending guidelings of the Fund, which are included on pagesBand 7
of this document. They aiso form part of the compiiance plan for the Fund, and as such the processes are included as part of the independent
audit of the Fund.

The unit price of the fund remains $1.00 as per the audiled financial report to end December 2009 signed off by the Fund's auditors on and
current as at 7 June 200,434 The independent audit sorfirms that the financials represent a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Fund, .

Notwithstanding the value of loans capitalising interest, approximatety $135 milion of loans are generating income to the Fung from business
and rental activity.

As at 30 June 210 there were 25 borrowers. 8.38% of total monies was lent to the Fund's largest borower and 58.22% of total monies was
lent to the Fund's ten largest borrowers. The Furd does not have one single borower that exceeds 10.00% of the Fund's assets.

Loan to Valuation Ratio (LVR)

LVR No. of Loans Value (§)

<50.00% 3 10,328,345
50.01% - 60.00% 0 o}
60.01% - 70.00% 3 21,512,876
70.01% - 80.00% 3 54,800,316
80.01% - 80.00% 11 petar 171.865083
80.01% - 100.00% 12 188,977,810
100.01% - 110.00% 7 98,213,745

The average loan 1o vaiuation across the merigage portfolio as at 30 June, 2010 is 86.56%.

The average loan o valuation ratio of the fund has increased from sub 70% to BB 56% singe the Fund clesed to protect capital value and o
priarifise repayment of the previous CBAline of credit faclity. The unit price remains $1.00.124 It is the loan to valuation ratio that has absorbed
the impacts duning this time, not the unit price. The conservative loan to valualion pesiifon the Fund adopts en initial setiing of its loans has
instiated it from the 2008 and 2002 sofiening in asset valuations. In addition the toan to valuation rafio has absorbed necessary capitalisation
of interest and Ican realisation costs which are due to the Fund and which are aceruing for coliection by the Fund when the borrower repays

the Fund.
Where reguired the Fund has asserted its legal fights to take control andl ensure the Fund is eplimally positioned for recoverability.

in line with the Fund's investment policies cenain assets within the Fund are secured by properties in vatious stages of cngoing develapment,
Foliowing the disruptions caused by the wordwide financial crisis, LM has assumed cantrol of some assets in order to effectively manage the
successful reafisation of each property's development strategy. That strategy includes increasing an asset’s loan to valuation ratio posifion
above 100% where it is reasonable to do so based on overall expeciations for recoverability of loan amount and interest.  The most recent
audited financiai statements (signed on 7 June 2010} confinma the Manager's determination of full recovarability of these loan assets has been

assessed on a fair and reasonable basis.

Whilst the Australizn economy has continued its strong performance trends, liquiidily in the “non-homeowner morigage”™ sector remains fighter
than has been evident in recent memory, The resultant effect has been a significart reduction in sales as raising finance for such a purchase

is slow,

The most reasonable and the preferred exit and recovery strategy is to complete the ongaing development of sach of these assets to position
them for maximum property vaiue on sale for recovery of original ivan capital and interest due on the ibans.

Comprehensive and detaied analysis of the assets supports full recoverability of Fund capital,
The audited financiat report for the Fund for the period ending 31 December 2009, signed on 7 June 2010 confirms unit price of the fulf $1.0G 134

406



Pape 12 of 13 Docld: 026634419 Org No:089 343 288

LM First Mortgage income Fund Mortgage Securities by Maturity Profile as at 30 June 2010

Period Maturing No. of Loans Value (§)

G- 12 menths 3 565,819,255
1324 months 0 ]
25~ 36 morths 0 0
37— 48 months 0 0
4980 months 0 ¢

Not alf of the loans will be repaid to the Fund within 12 menths. The Manager continues to drive reasonable exit strategies on the assafs to
realise the cashfiow required to mest all Fund expenses.

LM First Mortgage Income Fund Mortgage Securities by Interest Rate Profile as at 30 June 2010

interest Rate No. of Loans Value {3}

=or<7.00% 1 5,966,669
701% -7 50% 0 0
751% -8.00% 1 12,671,496
B.01% - 8 50% i 15,860 418
B.51% - 9.00% ¢ 0
201% -8.50% 3 47,845,645
9.51% - 10.00% 1 3,636,802
10.01% - 1050% 3 37225657
10.51% - 11.00% 8 148,322 511
11.01% - 11.50% 7 100,174,225
1.51% - 12.00% g 82 448 579
12.01% - 12.50% 2 58351434
12.50% - 13.00% 0 0
13.01% - 1350% 5 52517415

The disparity between the loan rales and the current investor rates is due to the fact that currerdly a large portion of the loans are having inferest
capitalised {accumuisted) 1o be collected when the loan repays. The average loan to valuation ratio of the Fund has increased from sub 70%
to 86.58% since the Fund closed to protect capital while the CBA facility was prioritised for repayment and during the financial crisis. The unit
price remains $1.00.124 i is the loan e valuation ratic that has sbscrbed the impacts during this time, not the unit price. The conservative foan
to vajuaticn position the Fund adopts on inifial setting of ils loans has insulated # from some softening in asset valuations and from capitalisation
cfinferest and loan realisation costs which are dus {o the Fund and are accniing for collection by the Fund when the borrower repays the Fund,

LM First Mortgage Income Fund Loans in Arears as at 30 June 2010

Perlod Ho. of Loans Value {$)
30~ 60 days 5 95,406 235
60— 90 days 0 4
80 days and over el 331833176

The Manager uses the terms “arrears’ and “defaull” interchangeably. UM calculsles iis Ioan arrears statistic in accordance with the {FSA
Standard Ne 18, “Best Practice Guidance for Disclosure in the Mortgage Trust Sector

The December 2008 audited firancial report (signed 7 June 2010} confirms recoverability and the unit price al §1.00.134 The independent audt
confirms that the financials represent a true and falr view of the financiat position of the Fund., .

The Manager is focused on management of the arrears leans for optimal recoverabiity, Please referto page 7 for information on the Manager's
arrears management processes. Arrears management is a normal and impottant area of management for a fund such as this where the
predeminant assets are loans. Arears management focuses on recoverzbiliy. Where required the Fund has asseried its tegal rights to take
corttrol and ensure the Fund is optimally pesttioned for recoverability,

The Manager's assat and recovery team cortinually assesses each individual loan in the partfolio to ensure best possibie positioning for
recovery of capital and interest. This is done through assessment of (i} valuations, (i) any sales in the particular security property and (i)
generai market evidence.

The effects of the *credit crunch” prevall with Australian banks and financial institutions still not readily releasing credit info the commerdial and
development seclors of the property market. These are the sectors aver which the furd has its secured loan assels and so sales and refinarice
activity remains siow,

am
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In managing optimal recoverability, some arrears assets have been identified for longer tem helds for value in more favourable market
condiions. Others are undergoing improvements to enhance marketability and secure appropriate sale price for the Fund over the medium
term.

As 2 mechanism of capital recovery the Manager may subordinate the Fund's position as part of 2 structured exit strategy. As al 30 June 2110
there is one loan which as been subordinated as an exit and recovery strategy. ‘The fotal amount of the Fund's loan is $9,205,380 and the
combined first and second loans constitute 55% of the value of the property held as sacurty,

The Manager continues to actively mariage each individual mortgage foan within the porifolio. Each asset has a specified course of action for
utimate realisation of the ban with critical timeframes.

A major foous of the past twelve months has been to ensure the timely completion of development projects within the Fund. This has been
achieved with only 2 loans now to be completed.

Thete are currently B assets wilhin the Fund which will benefit from minor futther invesimert into the progression of each project, One of the
benefits of the Deutsche Bank faciiity s that it enables development to recommence on ihess projects in order to enhance value and daliver to
the market more saleabls product than is currentiy offered by the englobe development asse!, Sales of such campleted end product {sfordable
residertial property sub $500,000) which wif erystalise significant Rilure cash flow to the Fund by way of tealisation of full Ioan amourts and
interest accrued {inckiding that accrued during the angoing development period). Determination of the timing of such sirategies is impontant to
the cash flow projections of the Fund which naturally help determine future investor regemptions.

Under Australian legisiation, and as regulated by the Austratian Securities and Investment Cammission (ABIC), furd managers of invesiment
funds such as the LM funds must provide specific disciosures refating to fund information provided to investors, to minimise the risk of misleading
of investor misunderstanding. As a responsitle entty and manager of the LM income funds, LM is required to display the lollowing disclosures
refating to the corent of this document.

Waming Statements/Fooinotes:

+ Pasiperformance is not a refiable indicator of future performance.

Z  Interest distribution rates are variabie, and will depend on income earned and expenses paid by the Fund from time (o time, commission
payable to advisers, and on the type of investment chosen.

#  Fund performancs is not guaranieed and returns could be lower than expected and there is a passibilty that an investor could suffer a loss
and may inse some or alt of their principal mvestment, investment in the Fund is not a bank deposit.

4 The unit price may vary and may decrease depsnding on the performance and value of the assets of the Fund.
5 investors will have limiled rights to withdraw if the Fund does not satisfy the statutory iiguidity test in the Corporations Act.

This product is issued by LM Investment Management Ltd {LM) ABN 68 077 208 481 Responsible Entity and AFSL No. 220281, LM requests
that investors consull their financial adviser or intermediary prior fo making an investment decision as well as consider this infermation in

conjunction with the PDS,

ABN 68 (77 B 461 Responsidle Entity & AFSL No. 220781

35 LM lnvestment Management Lid
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LM First Mortgage
lncome FUﬂd ARSN 089 343 288

Update for Investors & ASIC Benchmark Disclosure
24 August 2011

This document Is provided Lo give investors current information on the LM First Mortgage Income Fund's (Fund) compliance with
ABIC Regulatory Cuide 45. The requirements of ASIC's Reguiatory Guide 45 - “Morigage Schemes — improving Disclosure for Retail
Investers” was released in September 2008, Regulatory Guide 45 refers to 8 benchmarks developed by ASIC. Al unlisted mortgage
schemes are required to include statements in raspect of each benchmark ags to whether they comply or not.

Please ensure this document is read carefully, including any warning statements, before making any further decisions on current
investmenis in the Fund.

Fund Closed to New Members
LM Investment Management Limited {the “Manager") determined that from 3 March 2009 the Fund would not accept any applications
for investment from any person who was not an existing member in the Fund.

The Fund stil accepts applicalions for investment in the Fund from any persan who is an existing member in the Fund by way of roliover
of inveslment term. including deerned applications as part of any reinvestment of distributions, The Fund centinues to offer term
investments, allowing investment roliovers o existing investors, based on the ongoing achievement of the Fund's cbiectives, stralegies,
continuous disclosure as detailed in this document and any disclosure of ongoing material changes. When an investor rolls aver their
investment they wilt continue to roll for their cheice of investment lerm until they advise the Manager otherwise. Current fixed investment
terms are 48, 24, 13, 12, 8. 3 and 1 month. The interest distribution rate received is based on the underiying performance of the Fund
and the term and currency of investment 248 If an investor chooses to withdraw their investment at the end of their investment term,
as most normal withdrawals are currently suspended, the investment will continue to earn distribution interest at a rate based on the
prevaiting rate of the same term as the last nominated term, untif the Fund’s cash fiow is sufficient to make the withdrawal payment. 123
The Fund wili not be dectaring or paying interest distributions for the period 1 January 2011 until 31 December 2011, at which time the
distribution strategy will be reviswed dependent on performance of the Fund’s assets. Any income derived from Fund assets during
this pericd wifl be applied to the unit price,

Further detall on withdrawals is provided in the benchmark table on page 4 of this document.

Why the Fund Suspended Withdrawals and Ciosed to New Meinbers

In order (o protect the Fund from the prevalling credit and liquidity constraints in the property and financial markets, and the Fund's
simuitanecus obiigation to repay fis previous credit facility to the OBA the Manager closed the Fund 1o new investrients and suspended
withdrawals, with the exception of those approved under hardship provisions and feeder fund payments for feeder fund distributions
and expenses. Feederfunds are other registered managed investmant schemaes that have invested dirsctly in the LM First Mortgage
tncome Fund.,

I July 2010 the Manager successfully refinanced the CBA facility as Step One in the Managst's ulinale stizlegy 10 recpen the Fund
and resume normal operations in the future,

Strategy for the Fund

The Manager will continue to forward reguiar updates for investors on the 2011 Action Plan and program,

Wj LM Invesimeat Monagement Lid AR5 177 209 465 Rospsnsibie Snity  AFEL Mo, 226241
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ASIC Benchmark Disclosure for Investors

The information in the lable below provides an updated summary of how the Fund meets or does not meaet the 8 ASIC benchmarks
which are required under AS|C's Regidatory Guide 45 - “Mortgage Schemes - Improving Disclosure for Retail Investors” and whether
there are any material changes since the last update. Ws encourage you to discuss the ASIC benchmarks with vour finsncial adviser
A full copy of Regulatory Guide 45 can bs oblained from the ASIC website: www.asic.goval:.

The Manager will, via direct communication, notify investors in the Fund of all information relevant to the Fund, Such information
includes information that may be materally adverse and information that is not necessarily materially adverse but which is subject
to change from time to tme. This will include information that refates to the ASIC benchmarks such as information on the nature of
the Fund's portfolic investments including details of loans, whether the Fund invesis in other unlisted mortgage schemes and the
conditions of such investmont, A paper copy of any updated information will be given to investors without charge on request,

BENCHMARK NUMBER & DOES LM MEET EXPLANATION

NAME BENCHMARK

Benchmark 1:- No There have beer no material changes fo this benchmark since the last issue of
Liquidity the ASIC benchmark disclosure for the Fund, The information in this benchimark
{which for the purposes of rernains as follows:-

this benchmark means the The Manager has cash flow estimates for the Fund for the next 12 months and
proportian of cash of cash as sUch meels ASIC's liquidity benchmark guidatine Lo have cashfiow estimates
egutvaients in the Fund's for the next 3 months. As most withcirawals are suspended the Fund will have
assets) sufficlent cash or cash equivalents (not Including undrawn amounts under

lending faciliies) to meet profected cash nesds over the next 3 months, The
Manager's cash flow estimates for the Fund for the next 12 months contain a
detailed schedule ¢f managed loan repayments to the Fund from its existing
loan portfolio. The Manager constantly monitors and raviews the Fund’s cash
flow estimates howsver any defay in the actual realisation of projecled cash
flow will have a flow on effect 1o the cashflow the Fund requires to mest its
operational commitments,

With respact o balancing the maturity of Fund assets with Fund liabilities, the
Fund met this benchmark prior to its closure to new investments. As the Fund
is currantly closed to new invasiments, the Fund is reliant on incame (interest
paymants} from exisling loans and the repayment of loans to gsnerate cash
fiow within the Fund, During this time it is expected thal certain loans will not
mest interest payrent requirernents on time andfor by the original maturity
date. Therefore the Fund is currently unable to balance the maturity of Fund
assels with Fund liabilities and withdrawal requests.

Benchmark 2:- Yes Under the constitufion the Manager may borrow against the Fund assels on

Scheme Borrowing terms and conditions accaptable o the Mansger The Manager has arranged a
finance facility with Deutsche Bank AG (*DB") which was setlied on 1 July 2010
principally to refinance the previous Commonwealth Bank fine of credit.

As at 30 June 2011 the amount owing 1o DB was the drawn amourt of
$62,392,789. The remaining loan term is 1 year expiring on 30 June 2012, with
an option, at the Manager's choice, for a 1 year extension to 30 June 2013, The
interest rate of the facility is 15% (for the remaining 1 year term) snd 18% (for
the one year aptian if the option s exercised).

The facility is secured by a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the
Fund, providing DB, as cecured lender, with first priority over the sssels of the
Fund. The amount owing to DB ranks before investors’ inferests in the scheme.

The DB facility refinarced the Fund's previous Commonwealth Bank line of
credit. The Fund is required to maintain 2 minimum $8M cash balance within
the Fund, which may be applied solely to pay taxes, insurance and statutory
charges on security properiies and to pay fees, cosls and expenses in relation
to the facility. The DB facility is not intended to be used to fund distributions or
withdrawal amounts,

The facility will be repaic viz cashilow penerated by the Fund and there is
a minimum principal repayment of $9,006,600 due by 31 December 2011,
and whera the facility s extended to 30 June 2013, $13,500,000 by 30 June
2012, As at 30 Juneg 2011 the Fund had already schieved its minimum principal
repayment requirement for the 6 manths to 37 December 2011,

The Manager has successiully negoliated an amendment o the terms of
the current Loar Agreement with OB In order that certain funds available
from realisation of asset sales may be redirected from compulsery loan pre-
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payments to 2 newly created Capital Works Account. Funds allocated 1o
the Capitai Works Account are exclusively available to finance the ongoing
development and improvement of existing fund zssets. At this stage $7,500,000
has been allocated for such purposes and the development of snecifically
identified assets, forming part of the overall recovery strategy of the Fund, has
re-commenced, DB has additionally indicated that they will consider further
such requests on a case by case basis as required.

The facility agreement contains loan covenants that are usual for facilities of this
nature. If & loan covenant is Dreached, the facility may go into default, and in
those circumstances DB may elect to take recovery action. There are no loan
covenant breaches at this time and the Manager does not consider that any
such breaches are likely

Benchmark 3:- Yes
Portfolic Diversification

Refer to pages 7 to 10 of this document under heading “Portfolio Update as at
31 May 20117 for the Fund's current portiolio diversification,

The Manager's lending policies and procedures for the Fund remain unchangad,

Whilst the Fund is not actively lending to new borrowers, it is the Manager's
intention aver time to tend to new borrowers and this will be determined as part
of cash flow managemant of the fund in the best interssts of all investors,

The Fund does not currently invest in other unlisted rmortgags schemes and
the Furd does not have the cash to do so, but has the power lo de so in the
Fund constitution. The Manager's policy on investing in such schemes is 1o
ascertain whether such an investment is desirable for the Fund in light of the
circumstances at that time.  The Manager will not necessarily require such 2
scheme to satlsfy the ASIC benchmarks before the Manager invests in the
schame,

Benchmark 4:- Yas
Related Party Transactions

The fund may lend to, or engage in transactions with related parties, but
such loans and transactions are subject fo review by the Board and can only
be approved on commercial arms-length terms following approval by the
Credit Committee. The Board's approval process Is monitored in terms of
dsk management and business stendards and compliance. The Fund may
also invest in other managed investment schemes which are operated by the
Manage: Forfurther detalls refer o the paragraphs under the heading "Related
Pariies” on page 6 of this document,

The Manager has a documented Conflicts Management Policy which deals with
the identification, assessment and treatment of conflicts of interast and related
parly lransactions, Board approval fs reguired for all refated party ransactions,

Benchmark 5:- No
Vaiuation Policy

There have been no material changes to this benchmark since the last issue of
the ASIC baenchmark disclosure forthe Fund, The information in this benchmark
remains as follows: -

The Manager's valuation policies set out how real property assets over which
the Fund has securtty will be valued (that is. on an “as is” basis, and for
development loans, also on an “as if complete” basis) and how offen valuations
are oblained, The ASIC benchmark aiso requires that no one valuer conducts
more than /3 of the valuation work for the Fund, The Fund currently does not
comply with this requirement because the Fund is ciosed and the asset base
of the Func has reduced therefore the percentage has exceeded 13 of the
mortgage portfelio and as at 30 June 2011 34.4% of the morigage portfoiio
was valued by one valuer, Valuers ssigcted to perform relevant valuations
on the security property are chosen based on independence, specialist
industry expertise and geographic location. The ASIC benchmark requirss
the disclosure of information about the valuation of a particular praperty for
an unlisted mortgage schems where a loan secured against the property
accounts for 6% or more of the total value of the scheme's loan bock, The
Manager does not provide this information due to privacy reasons and dus to
the commercial sensitivity of vatuation information,
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Benchmark 6:-
Lending Principles

No

There have been no material changes to this benchmark since the last issue of
the ASIC benchmark disclosure for the Fund. The information in this benchrark
remains as ollows:-

Whilst it is the Manager's policy when settiing a loan to generally not exceed
& loan to valuation ratio of 66.67% on construction and development foans
and 75% on commercial loans (which ratios do both comply with the ASIC
benchmark), it is the Managers current practice to exceed those ratios
whengver necessary in the process of working through a repayment sclution in
current market conditions. The Fund's constitution allows the Manager 1o lend
funds provided that all morigages are secured over property and the amount
which may be advanced to a borrower does not exceed an LVR of 75% of ths
value of the sscurity property on initial setftement, After a loan has setlled and
where the Manager considers it is in the best interesis of the members of the
Fund, the Manager may aporove an LVR nol o excead 85% of the value of the
secuily property. The LVR of a loan that is in defaull may excesd 85%. Where
the loan is a development loan, funds are advanced prograssively in stages
through the development on a “Cost lo Complete” basis and the Manager
engages an external consuftant Quantity Surveyor for each development
and receives periodic feports on the progress of the development including
certification of construction claims based on work completed.

Benchmark 7:-
Distribution Practices

Yes

The Fund will not be declaring or paying interest distributions for the neriod 1
January 2011 untit 31 December 2011 at which time the distribution strategy
will be reviewed dependent on performance of the Fund's assets. Any ingome
derived from Fund assels during this period will be applied to the unit price.

The Manager reviews the distribution policy of the Fund each month,

Distributions are sourced from income earned from the assets of the Fund,
Currently income is earned from the existing assets of the Fund via i} interast
payments, renfal or other business income earned from assets, the Fund
receives from its existing income producing loans and (i) existing lcans on
which interest s being capitalised for collection on the repayment of those
loans to the Fund. The interest distribution rates are variable depending on the
ncome earnad, expenses paid and other matters relevant to the Fund.

Benchmark 8:-
Withdrawal Arrangements

Yes

There have been no material changes {o this benchmark since the last issue of
the ASIC benchmark disclosure for the Fund. The inforrmation in this benchmark
remains as follows:-

As stated in the Product Disclosure Statement, in certain circumstances
withdrawal payments may be extended to 365 days of suspended, Withdrawals
have been suspended lo protect Fund assets and provide slability in current
market conditions.  Subject t¢ the cashflow of the Fund, only withdrawals
approved under hardship provisions and feeder fund payments for investor
distribitions and teeder fund expenses may be made. investors may apply
under ASIC hardship provision for withdrawa! of thelr nvestment,  ASIC
hardship provisions are prescriptive and investors who wish o apply under
these provisions must meet the hardship criteria outlined in ASIC's provisions.
Investors can contact the Manager who wil provide details of ASIC's hardship
withdrawal provisions, If the withdrawal is aliowed under ASIC hardship
withdrawal provisions payment will be sublect to cashflow of the Fund,

A withdrawal notice may stilf be lodged Investors must give the Manager
writlen noticed signed by the investors. Flexs investrrent investors must provide
1 business days notice, Fixed Term investments investors must provide at least
5 business days notice prior to the maturity date, and Savings Plan invastors
following the initizl 12 month investment period must provide 1 business days
notice, I an investor checses to withdraw their investment at the end of their
investment term, &5 most normal withdrawals are currently suspended, the
investment will cortinue to eam interest based on the same term as the last
nominated term until cash flows permit the withcrawal to be paid.

fvestors should alse note the automatic raliover provisions which apply to their
investmerts, and the time periods for notice to be given to withdraw are as
outiined in this section.
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The amount payable o investars on withdrawal will be the issue price of thair
urits at that time. This amount is subject to change depending on the net value
of the assets of the Fund. $144.8 million of investments in the Fund have a
withdrawai pending.

$142.8 mifion of investments in the Fund's feeder funds have a withdrawal
pending.
Withdrawals pending across all of the funds is $287.6 milion.

Arrears Management

The Managsr has documented arrears management processes which are implemented in the event that a mortgage oan goas info
defaull. Arrears loans are managed by a team of experianced personnel. The documented procassas inchide the following:

= Bishonoured paymenis or other defaults are referred 1o the Arrears Marager for actioning, The Arrears Manager immediately
contacts the borrower to ascertain the circumstances of the defaull;

= Af the default is short term, arrangsments are made with the borrower to remedy the defzull
= |f the default is long term, a summary of the nature of the default Is emailed 1 the Arrears Committae with recommendations:

> The Arrears Committes ts comprised of the Executive Directors, the Portfolio Manages the Arrears Manager and members of the
Property Asset Management Department as appropriate;

> The Arrears Commiftee meets at least weekly,  The Arrears Committee considars the recommendations for arrears Ioans and
supervises the preparation of an arrears rmanagement plan for each arrears loan. Given the naiure of loans within the loan
portfalio, the Manager adopts a case by case approach to arrears management, refiected in the individual management plans for
aach arrears loan,

> Management plans are implemanted by the Arrears Manager who maintains a separate arrears file for each arrears inan;

> Reports on arrears loans are prepared and presented al Arrears Committee meetings. Managemeni plans are consicered and
updated as necessary,

> Forall arrears loans, a delalled recoverability analysis Is prepared and updated on a weekly basis as partof the arrsars management
plan,;

> External consullants {valuers, iawyers, insolvency practiioners, sales consullants etc) are engaged where appropriale throughout
the arrears management process;

> The Manager may from time to time foreclose on a security property as part of & realisation strategy, Foreclosure is a remedy
available 1o a registered mortgages Dy which the mortgagas becomes the absolule legal owner of the property fres of any interest
of the morlgagor In the event of foreciosure, the Manager may hold, improve and/or sail the securily property in order o achieve
the best result for the Fund, The Manager may sell a propsarty on which it has foreclosed 1o a refated entity, in which case the sale
price will be determined by valuation.

Arrears loans are managed in lhis way untd the security Is sold andfor alf possible recovery ction has been complated,

As a mechanism of capital recovery from lime 1o ime the Manager may subordirate the priority of a first mortgage as part of a
structured exit strategy for a loan,

Development Realisation Strategies

As part of the Manager's overall recovery processes, on certain Fund assets # has adopted an approach whereby the completion of
the original or revised development slrategy for those assets has been determined as offering the best ouicome for irvestors in the
Fund. The outcome of this approach may achieve recovary of the outstanding loan amounls and alse deliver the ability to sarn future
interest and revenue during the development timeframe In fine with the Fund's entitlements as mortgagee,

As detailed sbove the Manager has agreed an amendment to the Fund's loan facility with D8 in order that any funding required to
achieve the sutcomes noted above will have as litle impact as possible on the revised iquidity offerings being made to investors,

The development programes of each pruject have been formulated over the fest 18 months and the cerlaindy providsd by the amendmend
to the Fund's finance facility allows these individual strafegies to be progressed. All necessary approvals have been obtained with
construction activity anticipated o commence on each property. The program associated with these assets is such thal, in each case,
within B-7 maonths from commencement of works there will be completed “saleable” assets created, Al this paintin fime itis expected
that this strateqy will ecome cash flow posilive overall as completed product revenuss exceed expendiiure.

The overall development strategy includes those assets held by the Fund which are secured by operating, but partly develeped
retirament communities, These retirernent assets tolal arcund $100,000,000 of total Fund assets. This asset typs is guite unique in that
thay not only generats a typlcal “sales” type of revenue, ance individual dwellings are sold or “leased for life”, but they also grow an
unclertying business value which increases incrementally as each vilage grows, The Fund's securly also captures the growing value of
the residuz! business and this growing asset also secures the Fund's outstanding debt and futlire entilement to interest as morigages.
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The Manager tas successfully negotiated the operational, development and sales services of established industry operators for the
assst in this sector in order to provide for optimum delivery of this strategy,

In total nine of the Fund's assels have developrment realisation stralegies, Three of those nine zssets include 2 portion of completed
sateahle stock, The strategy for these three assels sees approvals currently being sought for construction of the next “Stage” of each

project so lhal once sufficient existing stock is soid the project may progress as projectad,

Related Parties

Broadly, the definition of "related party” includes a controlling entity, company or person of LM Investment Maragement Ltd (“LM"},
a public company. This filiers through all funds managed by LM, and any directors. This Fund does not have any loans o any LM
directors, Investor disclosure guidelines are designed 1o ensure that investors are aware of any interaction with transactions betwsen
different funds or where & direclor or other related party, including another fund, derves a financial benefil.

Aswell as providing best practice disclosure of all related party transactions, the guidelines further ensure the Manager is accountable
in terms of the management and moritoring of any related party iransactions. 1tis especially imporant that where there is a related
party somehow involved, that the transaction is evaluated from a due diligence and credit assessment process, as robustly as if Hwera
not & refated party transaction. Ongoing robust menitoring of thase transactions must also be demonstrated.

The Fund may lend to related parties provided the loans sre approved by the Credit Commitise on commercial, arms-ength terms,
They must then be approved at full Board fevel, and are subjact to review by the Board,

The Board is responsitle for reviewing and approving the structure and probity of commareial dealings between the manager and any
refated parties and for ensuring any such transactions are approved only and after taking inlo consideration the Manager's Conflicts
of Interests Policy Fees issued to the sccount of the Fund by related parties, which are recaverable from the Fund, must be on
commercial arms-length terms and are subject o review by the Board.

Following are the related party transactions within this Fund:~

= Since inception of LM Investment Management Ltd, LM Administration Ply Lid has been engaged by LM fnvestment Management
Lid to provide administration services ot a commercial fee. LM Administration Pty Lid provides administration and funds
management services (o the Fund and directly receives a management fas from the Fund for that service. LM Administration Ply
Lid also provides administration services at a commercial fee to Monaghan Lawyers, a law firm that provides legal services o the
Fund. Peter Drake, a director of LM, is the beneficial owner of LM Administration Pty Lid,

> John O'Suilivan, an executive director of the Manager is the beneficial owner of O'Sullivan Capital Management Lid, O'Sulfivan
Caphat Maragemant Lid has been engaged by LM investment Management Ltd to provide rmarketing services in New Zealand at
a commerclal arms-length fee. This fee is paid by the Fund.

> The Fund has 2 refaled party loans totafiing $10,083,088 granted to entities controfled by the LM Managed Performance Fund,
Both loans are petforming assets for the Fund at commeroial rates of 10.5%pa — 11%pa. Combined they equate to 2,19% of the
total loan portiolic.

Related Party Finance

LM s the Manager of the LM Managed Performance Fund, The LM Managed Performance Fund, in its own right, has secong morigages
behind loans that are first mortgages of the LM First Morigage income Fund, Al 30 June 2011 the Lt Managed Performance Fund
holds 3 such second mortgages in the total amount of $21,648,172. in each instance the LM First Mortgage Incorme Fund has entered
into a Prionty Deed to protect its own first mortgage position with the borrower s part of norma! loan documentation proceduras,
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PORTFOLIO UPDATE AS AT 31 MAY 2011

The funds under management is actual cash held in the Fund plus mortgage securities adjusted for provisions as agreed with audited
financial staterments as at 31 Decamber 2011, The provisions on the nans is a net provigion which accounts for bad debis expensed
between the Financial Statemert period of 31 December 2010 and 31 May 2011 accounting for any disposal of assets. The Manager
believes that s indicales a true and accurate reflection of the funds under management and lans as they are on the basis agreed
upen with auditors and the Financial Statements,

Assets of the LM First Morigage Income Fund

> Adiversified portfolic of Australian regisiered morigages over cornmercial, residential, industrial, retall and vacant fand; and

= Inlerest bearing cash investments.

LM First Mortgage Income Fund Asset Allocation

EE Registered First Mortgage Securities 95.48%
B Registered Second Mortgage Securities 2.37%:
M Cash & Cash Equivsients 2.15%

" As part of a structured exit sirategy for a loan the Manager may subordinate the priosity of a first mortgage. As 2t 31 May 2011 there is one loan
which has been subordinated as an exit and recovery strategy. The (otal amount of the loan is $11,167,499 and the cambined first and second loans
constitule 38.97% of the value of the preperty held as security

Asset Allocation Guidelines No. of Loans Value {$) Actual (%)
Registered First Mortgags Sacurities 29 448 915,578 95,48
Registered Second Morigage Sscurfties i 11,187,498 2.37
Cash & Cash Equivaients N/A 10,126,438 215

LM First Mortgage income Fund Sector Diversification
P

7. Commercigl 18,90%

B Residential 42.65%

B Retirerment 20.9%%

0 Industrial 13.62%

B Ponding Development Land 3.90%
"""" i Retail 0.00%

Sector Guidalines Mo, of Loans Value ($) Actual (%)
Commercial 8 87,148,829 16.80
Residential g 196,649,807 4285
Retirement 7 96,607,592 20.83
Industria 3 62823108 13.62
Pending Development Land 3 17,972,941 380
Retall ' 0 0 0.00

LM First Mortgage Income Fund Construction, Development and Other Mortgage Securities

i Other Mertgage Securities 97.57%
B Construction & Development Mortgage Securities 2.43%

Construction, Development and Other Guidelines Mo, of Loans Value (§) Actual (%)
Censtruction and Development Mortgage Securitias 1 11,187 489 243
Other Mortgage Securities® 28 449,815,578 §7.67

* Other Mertgage Securities includes pending development land, completed developments and commercial loans.
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LM F‘?rst Mortgage Income Fund Geographic Diversification

# New South Wales 24.21% B Western Australia 7.03%

B Australian Capital Terrtory 1,70% L3 Northern Territory 0.00%

. Victoria 4.66%, B Tasmania 0.85%

<. Queenslend 61.52% [ South Australia 0.00%
Geographic Guidelines No, of Loans Value {$)
New Sotith Wales g 111,632,388
VECtor;;' N 2 21,499,842
Queensland 14 283,673.411
South Australia 0 0
Australian Capital Territory 1 7,844,604
Western Australia 3 32,414,912
Northern Territory 0 0
Tasmania 1 4,032,940
LM First Mortgage Income Fund Portfolio Details as at 31 May 2011
Mortgage Portfolio Detalls Actual
Total vaiue of mortgage securities 461,103,075
Nurmber of mortgages 30
Average loan size $20,047.960
Averags loan 1o valuation ratio 41.98%
Total valug of loans with interest built into the facility andfor capitalised $413,802,604
Number of loans with interest buili into the facility and/or capitalised 27
Total value of undrawn foan commitments over next 24 months (progressive loan draws) Nit
funded by cashflows of the Fund
Number of loans with undrawn loan commitments over next 24 manths (progressive foan Nl
draws) funded by cashfiows of the Fund

Nif

Average monthly undrawn loan commitments funded by cashfiows of the Fund

The total value of leans generating income to the Fund from business and rental activitias is approximately $154.1 million and includes

some loans with interest capitalised,

As at 31 May 2011 there were 22 borrowers, 12.00% of total monies was lent to the Fund's fargest borrower and 86.50% of iotel monies
wes lent to the Fund's ten largest borrowers. The Fund does nol have one single borrower that exceeds 10.00% of the Fund's assats,

08 wwir. LMaustralia.com > LM First Mortgage ncome Fund
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L.oan to Valuation Ratio (LVR)

LVR No. of Loans Value {$)

< 50.00% 1 11,187,498
50.01% - 60.00% 0 0
60.01% - 70.00% 2 10,093,088
70.01% - 80.00% i 30,050,300
80.01% - 90.00% 3 21.448,848
90.01% - 100.00% 23 388,323,342 -

The average loan to valuation across the mortgage portiolio as 2t 31 May 2011 is 91.98%.

In floating the unit price, the Fund has applied a write down in its mortgage security values fo refiect current market conditions. Despite
this, wa are pursuing recovery by all means as per the Fund's legal entitlemant, and in a market in which we believe there may be
upside longer term valug for the Fund in "hoiding” the assats identified for same. See page 5 section headed “"Development Realisation
Strategies”,

Whete required the Fund has asserted its legal rights to take control and ensure the Fund s optimally positioned for recoverability,

LM First Mortgage Income Fund Mortgage Securities by Maturity Profile as at 31 May 2011

Period Maturing No. of Loans Vatue ()

0 - 12 months 30 481,103,078
13 - 24 months 0 4]
25 - 36 months 0 0
37 — 48 months o 0
49 ~- 60 months 0 o

Not all of the loans will be repaid to the Fund within 12 months. Refer o the separate progress updates of the 2011 action plan.

LM First Mortgage Income Fund Mortgage Securities by Interest Rate Profile as at 31 May 2011

Interest Rate No, of Loans Value {5}

0.00% 18 _ 297,565,730
=or<7.00% ¢ 0
7.01% - 10.50% 0 0
10.51% - 11.00% 2 34,441 537
11.01% - 11.60% 4 81,212,361
11.51% - 12.00% 1 7,879,852
12.01% - 12.50% 4 7,849,804
12.50% - 15.00% ¢ 0
15.01% - 15.50% 1 10,348,432
16.01% - 16.50% 1 11,187 469
25.00% 1 10,618,058

You will note above that certain of the Fund's loan assets which currently are generating revenue have increased interest rates
deteiled above, between 16% and 256%. Whereas such assets may be categorizad as either “arrears” or "cerforming” Joans, they
have been documented in such a way that the Fund may benefit, by way of increased interest sarned, in the fulure growth in valuz
of these particular assets, At this point in time the loans identified are secured by Retirement Sectar property assets, The Manager
has previously provided investors with detaited summaries of its ongoing development strategy associated with these assets and will
continue to provide such updates on a regular basis,
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The interest rate banding refers Lo the Interest rate to which the Fund is legally entitled in accordance with each mortgage security loan
document, The Fund will seek te recover all interest entillernent on behalf of irvestors but there may be instances where the Manager
will cease interest acorual based on recoverability analysic, This rate dees not currently include any penalty interest to which the Fund
may be entitled to charge in circumstances of default,

The total valug of loans generating income lo the Fund from business and rental activities is approximalely $154.1 million and

includes some loans with interest capitalized. The income generated by these securities witt fluctuate depending on variables such
as oceupancy, rental period/duration and lease agresmants/arrangements, business and sconomic conditions and seascnal pariods.

LM First Mortgage Income Fund Loans in Arrears as at 21 June 2011

Period Wo. of Loans Value ($)

3080 days 0 o
80 - S0 days 1 11,926,872
80 days and aver 25 398,841,147

The Manager uses the terms “arrears” and "default” interchangeably. LM calculates its loan arrears statistic in accordance with the
IFSA Standard No 18, "Best Practice Guidance for Disciosure in the Mortgage Trust Sector”

The Fund has asserted its full legal rights 1o take control and ensure optimal posttioning for recoverability. Pleass refer to page 5 for
information an the Manager's arrears management and recovery processes,

The effects of the “crecit crunch” prevall with Australian banks and financial nstitutions stil not readily releasing credit into the
cormmercial and development sectors of the preperty market. These are the seciors over which the fund has its secured loan assets
and so sales and refinance activity remains siow.

In managing optimat recoverability, sume arrears assels have been identified for fonger term holds for vaiue in more favourable market
cendiiions. Others are undergoing improvements to enhance marketabilfity and secure appropriate sale price for the Fund over the
medium term.

As a mechanism of capital recovery the Manager may subordinate the Fund's position as parl of a structured exit strategy. As at 31
May 2011 there is one loan which has been subordinated as an exit and recovery strategy, The iotal amount of the Fund's loan is
$11,187,498 and the combined first and second loans constitute 38.87% of the value of the property held as seourity.

The Manager continues 10 actively manage each individual morigage loan within the portfolio.

Undler Austighan legisfation. and as regulated by the Australian Securifies and investment Commission (ASIC), fund managers of
investment funds such as the LM funds must provide specific disclosures relating fo fund information provided to investors, to minimise
the risk of misleading or investor misunderstanding. As & responsible entity and manager of the LM income funds, LM is required to
display the following disclosures relating to the content of this document,

Warning Statements/Footnotes:
* Past performance is not a refiable indicator of future performancs.

2 Interest distribution rates are varlable, and will depend on income earned and expenses paid by the Fund from time to time,
commission payable to advisers, and on the type of investment chosern.

3 Fund performance is nol guaranteed and retirng couid be lower than expected and there s a possibility that an investor could
suffer & loss and may lose some or all of their principal investment. Investment in the Fund is not a bank deposit,

4 The unit price may vary and may increase or decrease depending on the performance and value of the assets of the Fund.
& Investors will have fimited rights to withdraw if the Fund does not satisfy the statutory liquidity test in the Corporatians Act,

This product is issued by LM Investment Managemerdt Lid (LM) ABN 68 077 208 461 Responsibis Entity and AFSL No, 220281, LM
requests that investors consult their financial adviser or intermediary prior to making an investment decision as well as consider this
information in conjunction with the PDS is avaitable by telephoning the Manager's head office on +617 5584 500,

AR G2 G7T 205 461 Raspinsfol Fality & 5780 No, 220381
AL COAST | SYONEY | PESTH | HOMEG KON | AUCKLAND ] QUEENST W | LONDOR T LUBA | IGRANNESRURG [ BANGKOK
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LV Investment Menagement Lid

The global pathway to Australian investment solutions

LM First Morigage |

ASIC Benchmark Disclosure for Investors
31 December, 2012

Return of Capital Process
LM tnvestment Management Lid (EM, Responsible Entity or we) as responsibie entity of the LM First Mortgage O
income Fund (Fund) has determined that it is ir the best interests of investors in the Fundt o continue the sales -
program with an orderly sale of all the rematning assets of the Fund in a commercial manner’ We have been
actively selling assels of the Fund since before its closure fo new investors and are corfinuing with this fo see
investors’ investment capital returned as quickly as commercially possible,

By March 2013, the initial distribution of capitat will be paict to all investors pro-rata 10 their respective holdings
inthe Fund. From June 20113, we intend repaying capital to all invastors on a periodic basis, probably each
Guarter, as and when liquidity is available from the sales program, afier paying or making such provision thal
wa rgasonably determine for liabilities of the Fund,

LM has also deferminad that the Fund is not “liquid” for the purposes of the withdrawal provisions under the
Corporations Act 20012 As a consequence, we can no longer process redsmption requests in accordance
with the redermption provisions in the Fund's Constitution. The oy way we can process redemption reguests
is 1o make a "withdrawal" offer to ail investors pursuant to the Corperations Act 2001 and we currently do not
intend 1o make such an offer. Instead we intend to returmn capital to investars by making pro rats periodic oa pital
distributions as outlined above. This decision doss nol affect the way we process applications for financial
hardship. Clalms wifl cuntinue to be processed in accordance with current procedures. 1If you think you are
eligible for a payment under financial hardship please comact the Responsible Entity who will provide detalls
of ASIC's hardship withdrawal provisions in ASIC ralief recaived by the Fund.

ASIC Benchmark Disclosure for investors

The Austraitan Securities end tvestment Cormmission (ABIC) has issued Reguiatory Guide 45 - "Morigage
Schemes — Improving disclosure for retail invastors” (Regulatory Guide). The Regulatory Guide sets out
benchmarks for disclosurs to investors 1o provide retail investors in mortgage schemes with the information
they need to make an invesiment decision, We have set out below our current procedures andd policies in
refation to the Fund and have indicated whether or not those procedurgs and policies satisfy each of the
benchmarks outlined in the Regulatory Guide.

T The Fund is closed to new investors and therefore a PDS is not available for this Fund,
2 The Fund suspended withdrawals in May 2008,
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ASIC Benchmark

Statement

Disclosure

Benchmark 1:
Liquidity

Benchmark 2:-

Scheme Borrowing

The benchmark

The benchmark
15 met

The Fund is managed with a visw to snsuiing it has cagh (or
cash eguivalents) sufficient to meet s projecied cash needs
over the next 3 months.

The Responsible Entity has cash flow estimates for the next 12
marths which are approved by the directors, updated at least
svery 3 months and refiect any material changas.

Based on current cash flow estimates for the Fund, we expect
the Fund to have sufficient cash to mest its projected cash needs
over the next 3 months.

LM regularly monitors the maturity of assets and liabilities of
the Fund. We have currently suspended withdrawals from {ahd
applications into) the Fund, This action has been taken to orotect
ths bestinterests of all investors in the Fund and to ensure assat
values are maintained,

in additfon LM has determined that the Fund is riot “fiquid" for the
purposes of the withdrawal provisions under the Corporations
Act 2001, as describad above.

LM has determined that | is in the best interests of investors to
undertake a program for the orderly sale of all the assets in the
Fund in a commarcial manner,

is met

Under the constitution the Responsible Enfity may borrow
against the Fund assets on terms and conditions accentable to
the Responsible Entily, The Responsible Enlity has ananged a
finance facility with Deutsche Bank AG (DB) which was originally
seilled on 1 July 2010 principally 1o refinance the previous
Commonwealth Bank line of cradit,

As at Decamber 2012 the amount owing to DB has been reduced
o the drawn amount of approximately $29.4m,

The current DB facility was due o axpire on 30 June 2013
howaver Liv as Responsible Entity has successiully renegotiated
the foan facility with the Fund's currert financier from 1 January
2013 unid 30 June 2014 with an option to extend the ioan far an
additional 12 months. The current interest rate undar the facility
is 15% pa (which will increase to 18% i an event of defaull
occurs and if e default subsists for longer than 8 menths it
will further increase to 20% pz). Under the facility, during the
first 12 monihs amortisation payments of at least $500.000 per
month is reguired unfil the facility s drawn down to $25m. Once
the facility is drawn dawn fo this tevel, no further amortisation
or payment of principal is required under the facility Within the
tollowing 12 months (that is, months 12-24) maturity of the $26m
facility is ctue on 30 June 2014, LM has an uption o extend this
tacility for a further 12 months, This option Is the sole right of the
borrower and 18 not subject to any review or addiions! fees, I
the coption is excercised the inieresi rate under e facility wil
remain af the seme 5 the current interest rate descrihed above
and the facility will mature on 30 June 2015,

The revised facility will provide certainty o the Fund and its
investors with regard to the maintenance of the cash fiows and
gnable LM to commence periodic pro-rate capital distributions
to investors adong with the certaimy of investing info the ongoing
improvernent of those Fund asseis already identified for
expenditure prior to sale. This structure will allow for the funding
provided to those assels to be internal and from the Funds own
cash fiows and thus not require the additional risk associated to
acquirng external funding to individual assets,
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ABIC Banchmark

Siatement

Disclosure

The facilty s secured by a fied and fleating charge over the
assels of the Fund, providing DB, as secured lender, with first
prictity over the assets of the Fund, The amount owing to D2
ranks before investors’ interests in the scheme.

The facility agreement contains loan covenants fhat are usual for
facilities of this nature. ¥ a loan covenant is breached, the facility
may go into default, and in those circumstances DB may elect
to take recovery action. Thete are no ioan covehant breaches at
this time and the Respongible Entity does not consider that any
such breaches are likely

Benchmark 3:-
Portfolio
Diversification

Benchmark 4:-

Related Party
Transaciions

The benchmark

is maet

Referio pages 6 o 16 of this document under hazading "Portfolic
Updaie as at 31 October 2012” for the Fund’s current portfelio
diversification,

The Fund s closed and is not actively lending however, the
Responsibie Entity's lending policies and proceduras for the
Fund remain unchanged.

The Fund does not currently invest in other unlisted mortgage
schemes, as the Fund is closed, ’

The benchmark

is met

g. The Fund has
a policy of ensuring that any transaction with related parties is
subjectto review by the Board and only approved on arnys-length

The Fund is closed and is not actively lending

‘commercial terms following spproval by the Credit Commiltee.

The Board's approval process is monitored in terms of rigk
management and business standards and compliance and
any such transactions only approved after taking into account
the Responsible Entity's Conflicts of Interes! Pelicy Ongoing
review of relatzd party transactions is conducted ragutarly and
monitared by the Board.

Ag at 31 October 2012 the Fund has fwo related party foans
totaling §2,272,569 granted (o entiies controlled by the LM
Managed Performance Fund (MPF). Both loans are pedarming
assets tor the Fund at commercial rates. Combined they equate
to 2.84% of the total loan portiofio. In accordance with the Funel's
policy, these loans were approved by the Credit Commitiee on
commercial, arm's-langth terms. They were approved at ful
Board jevel and are subject 1o review by the Board, The Fund
does not have sny ioans (o any LM dirsctors.,

LM is the Manager of the MPF The MPE In its own right, has
sscond morigages behind loans to third party borrowars that
are firsl mortigages of the Fund. As &t 31 Ocwober 2012 the
MPF holds 3 such second mortgages in the iote! amount of
$41,426.410. In each instance the Fund has entered into a
Friorily Deed o protact its own first mortgege position with the
borrower as part of normal loan decumentation procedures,

Further since incaption of the Fund, LM Administration Pty Lid
(LM Admin) hes been engaged by LM (o provige administration
services ala commeroial fea. LM Admin provides administration
and funds management services o the Fund and directly
recelves @ management fee from the Fund for that service,
The amount paid to LM Admin will be squal io the armount the
Responsible Entity receives from the Fund for management
fees. Peter Draka, a director of LM, is the beneficial owner of
LM Admin,
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4 ASIC Banchimark

Statement

Disclosure

Benchmark 5:-
Valuation Pelicy

Benchmark 6:-

Lending Principles

The benchmark
is not mat

The benchmark

is not met

The fund is closed and no new lending or renewal of existing
loans is ocourring as the Responsitle Entily Is continuing with
an orderly seli down of the assets. When the Fund was actively
lending the Responsible Entily's valuation policies sef out how
real property assets over which the Fund has securily will ba
vailied (that is, on an “as is” basis, and for development loans,
also onan “as If complets” basis) and how often valuations are
obtained,

Friorto the Fund's closure, itwas LM's policy to seek indepandent
valtiation of the underlying security property in accordance
with the Responsible Entity's valuation poficies. LM deterrmined
that throtigh the global financial crisis it would not atways be in
the best inferests of investors to utilise independent valuations
but that the assets wouid be vatusd formally twice vearly in ful
accordance with the Responsible Entity's statutory and genersal
aw duties, utiising a valuation methodology consisient wilh
the Fund's constitution, the Compliance Plan and applicabls
accounting stendards.  The Fund's auditors independently
review the values of each assetata minimum of every 6 months
as part of the Fund's regular audit program.  In addiion, LM
cormmissioned an independent review of assets by BIS Shrapnel
in 2012,

This ASIC Benchmark alse requires that no one valter condusts
more then 1/3 of the valuation work for the Fund, The Fund
currently does not comply with this requirement.

Further, this ASIC Benchmark requires the disclosure of
information about the valuation of a particular property for
an unlisted mortgage scheme where a lvan seoured against
the property accounts for 5% or more of the total value of
the scheme's loan book. The Responsibie Entity does not
provide this information due to privacy reasons and due i the
commercial sensitivity of valuation information.

The Fund does not meet Benchmark 6, because to meet
Benchmark & the Fund needs to maintain (for every loan) a
maximure loan-o-valuation ratio (LVR} of 70% on the basis of
the latest ‘as if complete’ valuation where the loan relates to
property development, and in all other cases a LVR of BO% on
the basis of the tatest market valustion.

During the fife of the loans, revaiuations mey be required for
reasons such as defaults and re-financing), As such, there may
be times when the portfolic holds loans with 2n LVR greater then
80%.

As at December 2012, all loans had a LVR greafer than that
spectlied in Banchmark 8.

The Fund is closed and is nol actively lending or renewing
exsting toans, however the Responsible Entity's lending policy
prior 1o the Fund's closure was when settfing a loan o genarally
not excesd & LVR of B6.67% on construction and development
ioans and 75% on commarcial foans. Both of these ratios
comply with the ASIC banchmark.
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Disclosure

ASIG Benchroark Statsmani
Benchmark 7:- The benchmark
Distribution is met
Practices

The Fund does not currently intand maling any further income
distributions. LM expscts to racommence the monihly income
catch up that is required for the period o 16 30 December 2012
for those investors who did not reinvest their income, by January
203,

As the Fund is currently undertaking an orderly sell down and
reafisation of assets, all distributions going forward will cansist
of caplal distributions.

The distribation reinvestment program that was previously
avaitabile within the Fund is no longer offerad 1o investors,

Benchmark 8:-
Withdrawal is met
Arrangements

LM has determined that the Fund is not “liquid” for the purposes
of the withdrawal provisions under the Corporations Act 2001.#
AS 8 CONSBOUENCE, We Can no I0ngsr process redemption
raquests in accordance with the redemption provisions in the
Fund's Constitution,

This means that the only way we can process reclemption
requests is fo make a "withdrawal" offer 1o all investors pursuant
to the Corporations Act 2001 and we currently do not intend
to make such an offer Instead we intend to return capital to
investors by making pro rate periodic capital distributions as
outiined above.

This decision does not affect the way we process applications
for financiai hardship. investors may apply under ASIC hardship
provision for withcrawal of their investment,  lwvestors who
wish to apply under these provisions must meet the hardship
criteria outlined in ASIC's provisions. If you think vou are eligible
for a payment under financial hardship please contact the
Responsible Ertity who will provide datails of ASIC's hardship
withdrawa! provisions. If the withdrawal is aliowed under ASIC
hardship withdrawal provisions paymant will be subject to cash
flow of the Fund,

3 The Fund suspended withdrawals in May 2008
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Fortfolio Update as at 31 October 2012

Assets of the LIV First Mortgage Income Fund
= Adiversified portfolio of Australian registered morigages over commercial, residential, industrial, retall and
vacant land; and

> interest bearing cash investments.

LI First Mortgage income Fund Asset Allocation

‘{ Raglalered First Mortgage Sscurities 04,68%
I Ragistered Second Morage Securities 4,26%*
i Cash and Cash Equivalents 1.06%

* Only as pari of a struciurmd axit sirategy for a foan the Responsible Enlity mav subordinate the priority of & first morigage.
As al 31 Oclober 2012 thera is one loan which has heen suborcinated as an exit enc recovery siralegy. The lotal amoun!
of the ioan s §14,004,904 and the combined first and second foans consiitute 68% of ihe value of the property held ss
securily and the Responsible Entity expecls fo make full recovary of the fovan,

Assat Aflocation Guidelines No of Loans Value (%) Aciuat (%)
Registered First Mortgage Securities 26 312,067,855 94.68
Registered Second Mortgage Securiles” 1 14.0% 004 226
Cash & Cash Equivalents NA ssozens  1os

LM First Mortgage income Fund Sector Diversification

B Commercial 16,17%
o Residential 4347%
i Refirement 35.81%
B Indusinal 4.20%
B Pending Development Land 0.35%
] Retail 0.00%

Sector Guidelines No of Loans Vajue {5} Actual (%)
Commercial 52724438 \
Residential 141,773,638

Retirement 116,766,833 .

: i :
W o o

Industrial 13,691,708 ’
Pending Development Land i 1,146,145 0.35
Retail 0 0 0.00
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LM First Morigage Income Fund Conétruciion, Development and Other Mortgage Securities

Other Morlgage Securities 48,368%
E: Consiruction and Development Morigage Securities 51.64%

Constraction, Developmant and No of Loans Value {§) Actual (%)
Other Guidelines

Construstion and Development 9 168,403,884 51.64
Mortgage Securities

Other Mortgage Securities® 18 157,858,875 48.36

" Other Morlgage Securifies includas pending development Jand, completed devslopments and commercial loans.

The renegotiated DB facility provides the capital reguired toward the further staged complation of thase assets
during the Fund's orderly sales campaign,

LIV First Mortgage Income Fund Geographic Diversification as at 31 October 2012

%, l S e New South Wales 17.13% B Australian Canpiial Terttory 2.49%
# Violoris 8.19% < Wastern Austialia 6.21%
Cueensiand 53.83% L Mortners Territory 0.00%
71 South Australia 0.00% Tasmaria 1,15%
Geographic Guidelines No of Loans Value (8}
hNew South Wales 8 55,872,657
Victoria 2 29,980,623
Queensland 12 208,136,858
South Australia 0 0

Australian Capital Territory ‘ 1 8,128,424
3 20,236,197
0 0

Wastarn Australia

Northern Territory

Tasmania 1 3,750,000
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L First Mortgage income Fund Portfolio Details as at 31 Qctober 2012

Mortgage Portfolio Detalls Actual

Totai value of mortgage Securltxes $326,102,75%

Number Df mcrtgages e e e e e 2? ]

Averaqe |Gan o e e - : q:‘;g 0{7 88[} ]

Average oan to valuaﬁon rafio B ) ‘100%

Totai value of Ioans W|th mteresi bulli |nto the famlity and!or capltahsedh - -$31 6 88{} 190‘ -
tt ‘nterest i}urlt mto th(-:- fac»lit andlor capnahsed o 25“ o

"fotal vaEue mf i}ndrawr:lnar; (ggwff;x—iv"utmantsr over next 3(} months o Nli o

{progressive loan draws} fumied i}y cashflows of the Fund

Number of loans with undrawn Ioan commitments over nexi 30 months Nil

(progl essive loan draws) funded by cashfiows of the Fund

Average monthly undrawn ioa; g;t;zmltments funded“l;)y cas_hf—l;\—rvs N

of the Fund

As at 31 Ociober 2012 there were 21 borrowers. 15.89% of total monies was lent fo the Fund's largest
borrower and 79% of total monies was lent to the Fund’s ten fargest borrowers. The Fund has one borrower
that exceads 10.00% of the Fund's assets and © borrowers thatexceed 5% of the Fund's assets, As the assets
are sold and the number of mortgages decreases itis the Responsible Enfity's expectation that the exposure
of the Fund to each borrower will increase.

Loan to Vaiuation Ratio {LVR)

LVR No. of Loang Value (§}
< 50 00% 0 0
50 01% - 60 00% e s e . ; - 0 .
5001% e e e e ; ho
BO 0'§% - 90 OD%WH ) 4 _ ) D
£0. 01%- 1{){} 00% l- “ 27 I u20 102,75:9 .

The average loan to valuation across the mortgage portfolio as at 31 October 201215 100%. This is as a rssuil
of the Fund's closure, when dug 1o the credit crunch and credit constrainis during the giobal financia! orisis,
the majority of the Fund’'s borrowers were unable fo meet the Fund's requast for repayment of the loan at
miaturily, which resufied in the loans being in defaull, Loar to valuation ratio reguirements have been exceadad
as interest and recovery costs have been capitalised to the oniginal loan amount concurrently with a softening
invalue of the property underying the Fund's first mortgage. LM, utilising the strong legal position afforded by
the Fund's first mortgage securily over the assets, has aken control of the majority of assets on behalf Fund
investors as required and is proceeding with an orderly sell down and reafisation of the assets to result in pro-

rata capital distributions to ivestors.
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LI First Morigage income Fund Mortgage Securities by Maturity Profile {
as at 31 October 2012 "

Period Maturing Mo, of Loans Value (8} &
0 6 months 27 326,102,758 iv“'
06 24 momhs e e 1 4 s i+ e 0 e T g : ,
25 36 manihs e R e s e Q e . {} S
37 43 momhs e e et e o s e O., - 0
49 60 montns 0 o a

The Responsible Entity is salling all assets in an orderly sales campaign and as the Fund is closed and not
actively lending, loans are nof being renewed.

LM Firat Mortgage Income Fund Mortgage Securities by Interest Rate Profile
as at 31 October 2012

Interest Rate MNo. of Loans Value (5}
=or< T 50% ' 0 0
R T
o v e e
B5%-900% ] o o
0.01%-950% ‘ 1 agTeET0

9 51% - 10 Oﬂ% 1 887 306

1001% - 1050% 6 30, 789 240
10.51% - 11.00% S - o : 39 o 46/ L
- 01% e — = e 780
11.5?% - iz‘go% b T R ;a ..h......‘.v__...,.......m.,u.,,45 367 038 o
12 {;1 0% - 12 50% R N
‘{2 50% - 13 gg%u R N OV‘ T —
136’3 %13 56% o - o o )

16 61 % - 18 50% 14,034,004

The interest rate banding refers 1o the interest rate to which the Fund is legally entitled {not inclucing any
penalty interest} in accordance with each morigage security loan document. The Fund will seek to recover
all interest entitemant on behalf of investors but the Responsible Entity has ceased intersst accrual based on
recoverabilily analysis,
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10 LI First Mortgage Income Fund Loans in Arrears as at 31 Octoher 2012

Period No. of Luans Value (5)
£ 30 - €60 days g 0
60 - 80 days 0 0

27 326,102,759

90 days and over
The Responsible Entity uses the terms “arrears” and “default’ inferchangeably LM calculates ifs loan arrears
statistic in accordance with the IFSA Standard No 18, “Best Practics Guidancs for Disclosure in the Mortgage
Trust Sector”

Utilising the strong legal position afforded by the Fund's first mortgage securlly over all prior and remaining
assels, LM has suocesstully taken control of the assets on behalf Fund investors as required following the
Fund's clasure, when due to the oredit crunch and credit constraints the majority of the Fund's borrowers werg
unabie to meet the Fund's request for repayment of tha loan at miaturity,

The Responsible Entity continues o actively manage each individual morigage loan within the portfolio.

Warning Statements
T This information is current as at Decembear 2012 but may be subject to change.

2 In preparing the information contained in this ASIC Benchmark Disclosure, we did not take Into account yaur particutar
investment objectives, financial siuation or needs. Investors shauid consult thelr financial adviser or intermediary prior
to making an investment decision,

Fast pericrmance is not & reliable indicator of future performancs.

4 Fund performance is not gusrantead and returng could be lower than expecled. Invesiment in the Fund is subject to
investment risk including loss of income ang principal ivested.  Investment in the Fund is not a bank deposit.

The unit price may vary and may increase or decreass depending on the performance and vallie of fhe assets of the
Fund.

L%}

o

This information s provided by LM Invesiment Management Ltd (ABN 88 077 208 481 and AFSL No. 220281).
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2 Details of large proprietary company

If the company is a large praprietary company that is nol a disclosing entity, please compiate the foflowing infsrmation as
at the end of the financial year for which the financial statements reiate:

A What is the consofidated revenue of the atge proprietary company and the enfifies that i controls?

L ]

8 Whatis the valus of the consolidated pross assels of the arge propristary company and the entities that i controls?

i |

C  How manry employees are empioyed by the farge Progrietary company and the enfities that it controls?

L ]

D How many members does the iarge proprietary cornpany have?

! ]

3 Auditor’s report

Werg the inangiat statements audited?

Yes

No

% i{ o, is thete a cless order exemption current for audt refiet?
[:] Yas
D No

if yes, does the auditor's repon (5308} for the financial year contain a statoment of;
Reasons for the auditor not being satisfied as 1o the matters referred 1o in 33077

DY&
Ewo

Petafls of the deficiency, failure o shoricoming conceming any matier referred to in 53077

DY&G
&Nn

4 Details of current auditor or auditors

Regislered schemes must advise ASIC Auditor registralion number ffor individual auditor v authorieed aue company)
of the appointmant of an auditer on & [
Farm 5137 Agpointment of scheme auditor

within 14 days of the appointment of the ~ Family name Given namg
auditor. L j !_ 7
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Company name
[ERNST + JOUNG: ]
ACN/ABN
(152 881 347 49
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Firm name (i applicable) _'
ASIC Form 388 23 June 2008 Page 2 ot ¢
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4 Continued... Details of current auditor or auditors

Acompany may have two appointed
suditors, provided that both auditors were
appointed on the same date. Otherwise, an
appointed auditor must resiga, ba removed
ar Gtherwise censed before & subsequent
appokitment may be made.

Oifice, unit, jevel

LWATEX L ONT PLACE |

Street number and Stree! name

[ ERtnE STREET ]

Suburb/City StatslTerrilory

[BEISEANE | [ QW ]
Posteode Country {if not Australia

(Y2290 | l |
Date of appointment

(el [11[1][0][0][3]

D O M M ¥ ¥

Audilor registration number (lor individual geditor or authorsed aikii company)

Family name (iven name

or
Company name

ACNIABN

or
Firm name {if spplicable)

| ' J

QOffice, uni, tevel

Street ember and Street nama

i ]

SuburbiCity State/Tersitory

| 1 L ]

Postcode Counlry (if no! Australia

I | l ]

S Statements and reports to be attached to this form

ASIC Form 188

Financial statements for the year (as per 5295(2) and acoounting standards}
income statemen for the year Y Ud
Baiance sheet as at the end of the yer u% Annex et A
Statement of cash Rows for the yost
Statement of changes in equity or statement of recogrised fncorie and expense for the year

! required by accourming siandards - the consoldatad income statemeny, balance sheel, slatement of cash
fiows and starment of changes in equity/statement of recognised income and expenrse

Notes to financial statements (as per $205(3)}
Disclosures remived by the regulations
Notes requied by the accounting standards
Aty otfier information ngcessary o give g true and fair view {see 5297)
The directors’ declaration aboul the statements and nates (s per s205(4))
The ciractors' repont for the year, including the auditor's independence deciaration (as per s295 to $3004)

Auditor's report required under s308 and s314

Concise report {# any) {s314)

23 June 2008 Page 3of 4
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
ABN: 66 482 247 488
Annual Report

For the year ended 30 June 2008
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
ABN: 66 482 247 488
Annual Report — 30 June 2008
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The Responsible Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Lid (ABN 68 077 208 461).
The Responsible Entity’s registered office is Level 4, RS, Building, 9 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise QLD 4217.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Directors’ Répor’t

DIRECTORS® REPORT

The directors of LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the LM First Mortgage Income
Fund, present their report together with the consolidated financial report of the LM First Mortgage Iincome Fund
(“the Scheme”) and its subsidiary (“the consolidated entity™), for the year ended 30 June 2008, The directors’
report is not part of the financial report.

DIRECTORS

The following persons held office as directors of LM Investment Management Limited, during the vear or since the
end of the year and up to the date of this report:

Name Period of directorship

Mr Peter Charles Drake Appeinted 31 January 1997

Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003

Mr John Dilion Appointed 8 June 2005; resigned 28 August 2008
Mr Eghard van der Hoven Appointed 22 June 2066

Ms Francene Mulder Appointed 30 September 2006

Mr John Vallander Liewellyn Appointed | June 2007; resigned | July 2008

Mr John O'Sullivan Appointed 27 November 2007

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Scheme continued the principal activity of investing unitholders’ funds in registered
first mortgages and cash investments in Australia, in accordance with the Scheme’s Constitution and in
accordance with the investment policy of the Scheme as outlired in the current preduct disclosure document,

The Scheme did not have any employees during the year.

SCHEME INFORMATION

The Scheme is an Australian registered scheme and was constituted in September 1999, The Responsible Entity of
LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Limited, who has been the Responsible Entity
since registration of the Scheme.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Responsible Entity and the Scheme is Level 4,9
Beach Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensland.

REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS

Results

During the year the Scheme continued to invest in registered first mortgage foans secured by property in
Australia and cash assets.

The Scheme performed well during the year and delivered to investor's rates of interest greater than cash and
a siable unit price of $1.00. The net profit attributable to unitholders for the year ended 30 Juse 2008 was
$51,289,597 (2007: $64,161,393),

During 2008, the Scheme had and continues to be impacted by events surrounding the global credit crisis.
Lack of liquidity in the finance sector first saw a general siowdown in repayment of foans from those
borrowers who were relying on refinances from other institutions to repay their toans to the scheme.

3
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Directors’ Report

Secondly, the introduction of the Australian Government Guarantee on bank deposits in Australia has also
impacted the Scheme with an increase in withdrawal requests received from members foliowing the
implementation of the guarantee. Thirdly, a reflection of the credit crisis has also now resulted in the
Schemes external financier requiring its loan facitity to be repaid in priority to most investor redemptions.

The directors believe the Scheme will be able to meet its obligations to the financier under the current
repayment plan through repayment of existing loans, however there is a risk to the unit price should the
financier exercise its rights and require asset sales which are less than current valuations in order to satisfy its
debt repayment schedule.

These three events in combination with the continuation of unprecedented general market conditions and the
fack of liquidity within the banking sectors investment capital has seen the Scheme delay the payment of
redemptions for a period of 365 days as per its constitution and in order to protect the investors,

Total assets under management were $634,110,877 as at 30 June 2008 (2007: $879,253,887). Investor funds
under management decreased during the year by $301,946,394 (2007: decreased by $94,350,212) this was
due to 2 combination of events mentioned above. Investor funds under management invested by related
managed investment schemes in LM FMIF decreased by $175,300,000 (2007: increased by $38,950,000) to
$218,750,000 (2007: $394,050,000).

The performance of the Scheme, as represented by the results of its operations, was as follows:
30 June 2008 30 June 2007

$ $
Net operating income/(loss} before distributions 49.797,814 64,161,393
Financing costs: Distributions to unitholders (51,289,597)  (64,161,393)
(Increase) / decrease in net assets attributable to unitholders - -
Net profit/(loss) (1,491,783} -

UNITS ON ISSUE

There were 481,418,84% units on issue at 30 June 2008 (2007: 783,324,637). During the year 157,043,148
units were issued by the Scheme (2007: 253,296,24 1) and 458,948,936 were withdrawn (2007; 347,646,453).

SCHEME ASSETS

At 30 June 2008, the Scheme held assets to a tofal vaiue of B634,110,877 (2007 $879,253,887). The basis
for valuation of assets is disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements,

FEES PAID TO THE RESPONSIBLE ENTITY AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The foliowing fees were paid to LM Investment Management Limited and its associated companies out of
Scheme property during the financial year, for funds management and administrative services provided on
behalf of the Responsible Entity:
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Directors’ Report

1608 2007
b g
e Management fees paid directly to LM Administration Pty Ltd 5,801,477 9,934,860

¢ Expenses incurred by the Responsible Entity and its associated entities

which are reimbursed in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme’s

Constitution, including administration and custodian fees - 386,755
¢ Expenses incurred by LM Administration Pty Ltd which are reimbursed

in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme’s Constitution,

including administration and custodian fees 826,743 “
* Loan origination fees received by borrowers within the Scheme that were
reimbursed to the Responsible Entity for the administration of loan 9,410,607 3,381,487

origination services

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

In the opinion of the directors, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Scheme that
occurred during the financial year under review.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE DATE

Other than the matters disclosed in Note 19 of the financial report there has been no matter or circumstance
that has arisen since the end of the financial year that has significantly affected or may affect the Scheme’s
operations in future financial years, the results of those operations of the Scheme’s state of affairs in future

years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

Further information on likely developments in the operation of the Scheme and the expected results of those
operations has not been included in this report because the Responsible Entity believes it would likely to
result in unreasonable prejudice to the Scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE

The operations of the Scheme are not subject to any particular or significant environmental regufations under
a law of the Commonwealth or a State or Territory. There have been no known significant breaches of any
other environmenta) requirements appiicable to the Scheme.
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iNDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

No insurance premiums are paid for out of the assets of the Scheme in regards to insurance cover provided to
either the officers of LM Investment Management Ltd or the auditors of the Scheme. Provided the officers of
LM investment Management Ltd act in accordance with the Scheme Constitution and the Law, the officers
remain indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme against losses incurred while acting on behalf of the
Scheme. The auditors of the Scheme are in no way indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corparations Act
2001 is set out on page 7.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited.

Lisa Darcy
Director
Gold Coast

10 March 2005
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”‘“““””“”””1HIHHN'*'"'ill ERNST & YOUNG é:?g%gg;:% .

Tel:+61 7 3011 3333
Fax:+61 7 3011 3100
www.ey.com/au

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of LM Investment Management
Limited as Responsible Entity for LM First Mortgage income Fund

inretation to our audit of the financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund for the financial year
ended 30 June 2008, to the best of my knowiedge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the
auaitor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional
conduct,

EM'B»‘Q- a‘~ \1&.;'3

Ernst & Young

’?m Mi&\me

Paula McLuskie
Partner
Brisbane

10 March 2009

Liabilty limites by & scheme approvel
under Professional Standards Legislation
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 30 June 2008

Income

Changes in the fair value of investments
Interest revenue ~ loans and advanges
Interest revenue — cash assets

Other income

Total revenue and other income

Expenses

Management fees

Custodian fees

Advisor commissions

Impairment losses on loans and receivables
Finance costs

Legal fees

Other expenses

Fotal expenses excluding distributions to
unitholders

Net profit attributable t6 unitholders
Distributions to unitholders

Changes in net assels aitributable to
aritholders

Income tax expense

Changes in net asseis attributable to
wunitholders afier income tax expense

Notes

3(a)
3(b)
3(b)
3a)

S(d)

<360

36 June 2008

30 June 2007

Consuolidated Scheme Consolidated Scheme
$ b £ $
28,379 - 377,052 -
B1.612,05¢ 81,645,183 80,704 491 81,106,122
1,504,559 1,501,881 3,449,423 3,424 562
2,005,949 2,005,949 3,945,714 31945,714
85,150,946 85,153,013 88,476,680 88.476.398
5,801,477 5,801,477 9,934,860 9,934,860
157,876 157,876 185,054 185,054
2,640,504 2,640 504 3,856,517 3,856,517
6,154,911 6,157,884 2,563,242 2,563,242
10,169,709 16,169,709 3,520,151 3,520,151
36,949 36,949 35,411 35411
10,391,706 10,390,800 4,220,052 4,219,770
35,353,132 35,355,199 24,315,287 24,315,005
49,797,814 49,797 814 64,161,393 64,161,393
{51.289,597)  (51,289.597) (64,161,393} . (64,161,393)
(1,491,783) {1,491,783) - -
(1,491,783) (1,491,783 - -
g
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 June 2008
30 June 2008 30 June 2007
Consolidated Scheme Consolidated Scheme
$ £ LY 5
Noies
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 14 14,643,332 14,643,332 28,593,772 28332244
Receivables 13 4,797,790 4,797,785 6,997,000 6,934,391
Prepayments @ 7,845,017 7,845,017 3,482,170 3,482,170
Investments - 1 5,654,350 |
L.oans and receivables \(\Qg‘ /f 606,824,738 606,824,738 834,505,081 840,505,081
TOTAL ASSETS &T{\XJ ‘) - 634,110,877 634,110,877 879,232,373 879,253 887
' (\Q’
L1ABILITIES oY
Payables 10 878,796 878,796 481,752 503,266
Interest bearing Joans and berrowings i 150,000,000 150,000,000 90,466,662 90,466,662
Distributions payable 3(c) 3,305,018 3,305,015 4,959,322 4,959,322
Fair value of forward exchange contracts 40,606 40,606 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES EXCLUDING
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TG
UNITHOLDERS 154,224,417 154,224,417 895,907,736 95929.250
KET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
UNITHOLDERS & 479,886,460 479,886,460 783,324,637 783,324,637

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2008

Net assets of the Scheme that are attributable to unitholders are classified as a liability rather than equity. Asa
result there was no equity at the start or end of the year. A Starement of Changes in Net Assets Atributable fo

Unitholders is disclosed in note 6.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 30 June 2608

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest and distributions received
Management fees paid

Other operating expenses

Other income received

GST and withholding tax (paid)/received
Finance costs paid

Net cash mflow/{outflow) from
operating sctivities 14(b)
Cash fiows from investing activities
Payments for secured morigage loans
Receipts from settied mortgage loans

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing
unctivities

Cash fiows from finsncing activities
Proceeds from borrowings

Receipts from the issue of units
Distributions paid

Payment for redemption of units

Net eash inflow/(eutflow) from financing
activities

Net increase/decrease) it cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of

the year 14{a})

30 June 2008 30 June 2007
Consclidated Scheme Consolidated Scheme
] s $ $

22918375 22,827,388 35,249,640 34,910,335
{9,724, 881 (5,724,881) (10,467,111 {10,467,111)
(17,970,388}  {17,990,996) {6,635,397) (6,539,445)
4,231,876 4,229,198 1,611,118 1,547,484
729,911 729,911 (481,965) (481,965)
(10,169,709)  (10,169,709) (3,520,151) {3,526,151)
(9,984,816} (10,099,089} 15,756,134 15,449 147
{320,347,455)  (320,117,304) (386,157,123) (385,755,492)
611,498,185 611,843,835 464,782,349 464,776,872
291,350,730 291,726,531 78,625,226 79,021,380
59,533,338 59,533,338 60,050,000 60,050,000
145,782,718 145,782,718 236,754,786 236,754,786
(41,683,474  (41,683,474) (47,941 585) (47,941 585)
(458,948,936) {458,948,936) (347,646,486 (347.646,486)
(295,316,354)  {295,316,354) (98,783,285)  (9%,783285)
(13,950,440)  (13,688,912) (4,401,925) {4,312,758)
28,593,772 28,332,244 32,995,697 32,645,002
14,643,332 14,643,332 28,593,772 28,332,244
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008

L CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund (“the Scheme®) for the year ended 30 June 2008
was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors of the Responsibie Entity on i0
March 2009, :

The Scheme is an Australian registered Scheme, constituted on 13 April 1999, The Scheme will
terminate on 13 April 2080 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provision of the Scheme
Constitttion (as amended),

LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the Scheme, is incorporated and
domiciled in Australia. The regisiered office of the Responsible Entity is located at Level 4, 9 Beach
Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensiand.

The nature of the operations and principle activities of the Scheme are described in the Directors’ report.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistentiy applied to all periods presemted, unless otherwise stated in
the following text.

a) Basis of accounting

This financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with the
Scheme Constitution, and the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, which includes applicabie
Accounting Standards,

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the valuation
of investments in financial assets, which have been measured at fair value or amortised cost.

The balance sheet presents assets and liabilities in decreasing order of iiquidity and does not distinguish
between current and non-current items, in accordance with AASB 10} - Presentation of Financial
Statements.

Subsequent to balance date the scheme has been negatively impacted by & further tightening in credii
matkets.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis the Scheme is a going concern. As detailed in
Note 11i, the Responsible Entity has been able to negotiate an extension to its external financing facilities
until 31 July 2009, with a requirement for the fulf balance to be repaid in instalments, in priority to any
redempiions over this period, as below:

Tranche A Tranche B Total
28 February 2009 10,000,000 10,000,00G
31 March 2009 17,560,000 17,500,000
30 April 2009 20,000,000 20,000,600
31 May 2009 27,500,000 15,000,000 42,500,000
30 June 2009 45,000,000 45,000,000
31 July 2009 15,000,000 15,000,060
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As at the date of this report, the Scheme has not made the repayment under the facility due on the 28
Febraary 2009. This repayment is now overdue and the failure to make this repayment constitutes a
breach under the facility, Correspondence has been received from the external financier stating that it is
reviewing its options in respect of the faciiity, including the right to enforce its security and reserves its
rights in respect of this breach,

The directors believe the Scheme will be able to meet its remaining obligations under the repayment plan
through repayment of existing loans including the refinancing of sxisting loans with alternative financing
providers; the repayment of foans from related entities: and the repayment of the prepaid management fee
from LM Administration Pty Lid.

The timing of these cash inflows is not at the discretion of the Scheme, as the Scheme is reliant on events
outside the Schemes control and these events impact the Schemes ability to meet repayments of the
financiers, In this event, this would require the Directors to secure continued support from the external
financier or alternate sources of finance. The Directors believe that therefore there remains significant
uncertainty as to the Scheme’s ability to make the requirement repayments to the financiers as required
within the timeframes set out in the loan agreement,

As a result of these matters there is significant uncertainty whether the Scheme will continue as a going
coneern, and therefore whether it will realise its assets and extinguish its liabilities in the normal course
of business and at the amounts stated in the financial report, The financial report does not include any
adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or to the amo
and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Scheme not confinue as a going
concern. ‘

é

For further information relating to the prepaid management fee refer to note 12, other receivables
related parties refer to note 12 and borrowings refer to note 11.

b) Btatement of compliznce

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian
equivalents 1o Internationa} Financial Reporting Standards (‘AIFRS'). Compliance with AIFRS ensures
that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes thereto, complies with
international Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) as issued by the International Accounting Standards

Roard.

Australian Accounting Standards that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective have
not been adopted for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2008 are shown in the following tables.
None of the standards issued or amended have an impact on the accounting policies adopted by the
Scheme.
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Reference Title Summary Application | Impact on Application
date of Scheme daie for
standard* | financial report | Scheme®

AASB 8 and | Operating Segments | New standard replacing | January AASB8isa 1 July

AASRB 2007- | and consequential AASB 114 Segment 2009 disclosure 2009

3 amendments to Reporting, which adopts standard so wiil

other Australian a management reporting have no direct

Accounting approach to segment impact on the

Standards reporting. amounts
inchuded in the
Scheme’s
financial
statements. The
amendments
may have an
impact on the
Scheme’s
segment
disclosures.

AASB 101 Presentation of Introduces a statemnent of | 1 January These 1 July

{Revised) Financial comprehensive income, | 2009 amendments are | 2009

and AASH Staternents and Other revisions inciude only expected to

2007-§ consequential impacts on the affect the

amendments to presentation of items in presentation of
other Australian the statement of changes the Scheme’s
Accounting in equity, new financial report
Standards presentation and will not have
requirements for a direct impact
restatements or on the
reclassifications of items measurement
in the financial and recognition
statements, changes in of amounis
the presentation disciosed in the
requirements for financial report,
dividends and changes to The Scheme has
the titles of the financial not determined at
statemnents, this stage
whether to
present a single
statement of
comprehensive
income or two
separate
statements,
AASB 127 | Consolidated and Under the revised 1 July These 1 July
(Revised) Separate Financial | standard, a change in the | 2009 amendments are | 2009

Statements

ownership interest of a
subsidiary (that does not
result in loss of control)
will be accounted for as
an equity transaction.

not expected to

have any impact
on the Scheme's
financial report.

13
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Reference Title Summary Application | Impact on Application
date of Scheme date for
standard® | financial report | Scheme*

Amendments | Improvements to The improvements ! January The Scheme has | 1 July

to, IFRSs project is an annual 2009 except | not yet 2609

International project that provides a for determined the

Financial mechanism for making amendment | extent of the

Reporting non-urgent, but s 10 IFRS 5, | impact of the

Standards necessary, amendmenis which are amendments, if

to IFRSs. The IASB has | effective any.
separated the from | July
amendments into two 2009,
parts: Part | deals with
changes the IASH
identified resulting in
accounting changes; Part
Il deafs with either
terminology or editorial
amendments that the
TASB believes will have
minimal impact.
AASB Amendments to The improvements } January The Scheme has | | July -
2008-5 Australian project is an annual 2009 not yet 2009
Accounting project that provides a determined the
Standards arising mechanism for making extent of the
from the Annual non-urgent, but impact of the
Improvements necessary, amendments amendments, if
& Project to IFRSs. The JASB has any,
separated the
AASB amendments into two 1 July
2008-6 Further parts: Part | deals with 2009
Amendments (o changes the JASB
Australian identified resuiting in
Accounting accounting changes; Part

Standards arising
from the Annual
Improvements
Project

H deals with either
terminelogy or editorial
amendmerts that the
IASB believes will have
minimal impact,
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Reference Title Semmary Application | Impact on Application _]
date of Scheme date for
standard* | financial report | Scheme*

AASB 2008- | Amendments to The mair amendments of | [ January Recognising all | 1 July

7 Australian relevance to Austraiian 2009 dividends 2009

Accounting entities are those made 1o received from
Standards — Cost of | AASB 127 deleting the subsidiaries,

an Investment ina | ‘cost method® and Jointly controlled
Subsidiary, Jointly | requiring all dividends entities and
Controlled Entity or | from a subsidiary, Jointly asspciates as
Associate controlled entity or income will

associate to be
recognised in profit or
toss in an entity’s
separate financial
statements (i.e., parent
company accounts). The
distinction between pre-
and post-acquisition
profits is no longer
required. However, the
payment of such
dividends reguires the
entity to consider
whether there is an
indicator of impairment.

AASB 127 has also been
amended to effectively
allow the cost of an
investment in a
subsidiary, in limited
reorganisations, to be
based on the previous
carrying amount of the
subsidiary (that is, share
of equity) rather than its
fair value (An issue
sometimes known as a
“dividend trap™ in
NEWCos),

likely give rise to
greater income
being recognised
by the parent
entity afier
adoption of these
amendments.

In addition, if the
Scheme enters
into any
rearganisation
establishing new
parent entities,
an assessment
will need 10 be
made to
determine if the
reorganisation
meets the
conditions
imposed to be
effectively
accounted for on
a ‘carry-over
basis® rather than
at fair valug,

*designates the beginning of the applicable annual reporting period uniess otherwige stated

The following standards have been amended, however they do not affect the Scheme:
AASB Int. 12 and AASB 2007-2: Service Concession Arrangements and consequential
amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards

8

& 8 & @

AASB Int. 4 (Revised): Determining whether an Arrapgement coniains a Lease

AASB Int. 129: Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures

AASB int. 13: Customer Loyalty Programmes
AASE Int. 14: AASB 119 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimu

Requirements and their Interaction
AASE Int. I5: Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate

15
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® AASB Int. 16: Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

® AASB 2007-9: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Review
of AASs 27, 29 and 3}

e AASB 1004 (revised): Contributions

® AASB Int. 1038 (Revised): Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public
Sector Entities
AASB 1049: Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting

[ ]

o AASB 1050: Administered Items

o AASB 1051: Land Under Roads

® AASB 1052: Disaggregated Disclosures

& AASB 123 (Revised) and AASB 2007-6: Borrowing Costs and consequential amendments
to other Australian Accounting Standards

° AASB 2008-1: Amendments to Austraiian Accounting Standard — Share-based Payments:
Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

s AASB 2008-2: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Puttable Financia)
Instruments and Obligations arising on Liquidation

° AASB 3 (Revised): Business Combinations: Business Combinations

a AASB 2008-3: Amendments to Austratian Accounting Standards arising from AASE 3 and
AASB 127

@ AASB 2008-8: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Eligible Hedged items

® AASB 2008-9: Amendments to AASB 1049 for consistency with AASB 101

® AASB 2008-10: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Reclassification of

Financial Assets (Amendments to AASB 139 Financial instruments: Recognition and

Measurement and AASB 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures}

Amendments to International Financial Reporting Standards: Eligible Hedged items
@ IFRIC 15: Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

IFRIC 16: Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

¢} Basis of conselidation

This consolidated financial report comprises the financial report of LM First Morigage Income Fund and
its subsidiary as at 30 June 2008 (“the consolidated entity™). The financial report of the subsidiary is
prepared for the same reporting period as the Scheme, using consistent accounting policjes.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements ajl intercompany balances and income and expenses
and profit and losses resulting from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in full. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group and cease to
be consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the group.

d) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
(i) Sigpificant accounting judgements
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made judgements, apart

from those involving estimations, which have had an impact on the amounts recognised in the {inancial
statements. No judgements have been determined to be individually significant.

(if) Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are ofien determined based on estimates and
assumptions of future events. The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing

18
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a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities within the next annual
reporting period are:
Allowance for impairment loss on loans and receivables

The Scheme determines whether loans are impaired on an ongoing basis. This requires an estimation

of the value of future cash flows. The Scheme’s policy for calculation of impairment losses is

disclosed in Note 2¢h)(ii).
e} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with origina) maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafis. For the purposes
of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined
above, nei of outstanding bank overdrafis.
£} Revenue and income recognition
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable to the
extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Scheme and the revenue can be
reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before income is
recognised:

1} Dividend and distribution income

Dividend or distribution income is recognised when the shareholders’ or unitholders’ right to
receive the payment is established.

if) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues (using the effective interest rate method,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument) to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
i) Changes in the fair value of investments
Gains or losses on investments held for trading are calculated as the difference between the fair
value at sale, or at year end, and the fair value at the previous valuation point. This includes both
rezlised and unrealised gains and losses.
g) Finance costs
Interest on borrowings is recognised in the income statement in the period to which it refates. Issue costs

associated with borrowings are capitalised and amortised over the term of the borrowing to which they
relate using the effective interest method.
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b} Investments and other financial sssets

Financial assets in the scope of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivabies, held-to-
maturity investments, or available-for-sale investments, as appropriaie. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transactions costs. The consolidated entity determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the
Scheme commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets under contracts that require delivery of the assets within the period established generally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

i} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the category ‘financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss’. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are
recognised in profit or loss,

it} Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not gquoted in an active market, Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value
including transaction costs directly attributable to the financial asset. After initial recognition, Joans
and receivabies are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and iosses are
recognised in profit or toss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amortisation process.

/ Loans and receivables are assessed for impainment at each reporting period. An alfowance is made
for doubtful debts when there is objectivé evid ence that the consolidated entity will not be able to
collect the reccivables, Impairment Josses are writien o videntified. Losses expected as a
result of future events are not recognised. AT provision for impairment has been recognised in

L Felation o e Toan;wr 0 ebts are made against the provision. If no provision for
impairment has previously been recognised, write offs for bad debts are recognised as an expense in
the income statement,

The amount provided for impairment of loans is determined by management of the Scheme and the
Credit Commitiee. A provision is made of loans in arrears where the collectability of the debts is
considered doubtful by estimation of expected losses in relation o Toan portfolios ‘where specific -
identification is impracticabie.

The components of impaired assets are as follows:

“Loans in arrears” are loans and advances for which there is reasonabic doubt that the Scheme will be
able to coliect all amounts of principal and interest in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

“Assets acquired through the enforcernent of security” are assets acquired in full or partial settlement

18
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of a loan or similar facility through the enforcement of security arrangements.

“Restructured Joans” arise when the borrower is granted a concession dus to continuing difficulties in
meeting the original terms and new terms are not comparable to the revised terms. These loans are
removed from ‘restructure loans’ after a period of 12 months of performance against loan revised
terms and conditions. Loans with revised terms are included in “loans in arrears’ when impairment
provisions are required.

When the Responsible Entity determines interest is not recoverable on certain impaired loans, the
interest is suspended and not brought into income. Should the Responsible Entity’s analysis of the
collectability subsequently change the interest will be brought into income at the time it is determined
to be collectible.

i} Advisor Commissions

Advisor commissions may be paid to the unitholders’ investment advisors and are calculated as a
percentage of funds invested in the Scheme. These commissions are paid monthly in arrears and are
brought to account on an accrual basis. The Scheme ceases 1o pay advisor commissions when the related
units are redeemed,

i} Payables

Payables are carried at amortised cost and represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the
consolidated entity prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the consolidated
entity becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchases of these goods and services.

Trades are recorded on trade date, and normally settled within three business days. Purchases of
securities and investments that are unsettied at reporting date are included in payabies.

The distribution amount payable to investors as at the reporting date is recognised separately on the
balance sheet as unit holders are presently entitled to the distributable income &s at 30 June 2008 under
the Scheme’s Constitution.

Foreign currency received from investors for investment into the Scheme is classified as a payable until it
15 subject to hedging by the Scheme entering into forward exchange contracts, at which time the foreign
currency is invested into the Scheme and units issued.

k} Increase/decrease in net assets attributable fo unitholders

Non-distributable income is transferred directly to net assets attributable 1o unitholders and may consist
of unrealised changes in the net fair value of investments, accrued income not yet assessable; expenses
accrued for which are not yet deductible, net capital losses and tax free o tax deferred income. Net
capital gains on the realisation of any investments (includ ing any adjustments for tax deferred income
previously taken directly to net assets attributable to unitholders) and accrued income not yet assessable
will be included in the determination of distributable income in the same year in which it becomes
assessable for tax. Excess and undistributed income is also transferred directly to net assets attributable io

unitholders,
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i) Distributions

In accordance with the Scheme’s Constitution, the Scheme fully distributes its distributable income to
unitholders. Distributions are payable monthly. Such distributions are determined by reference to the net
taxable income of the Scheme. Distributable income includes capital gains arising from the disposal of
investments. Unrealised pains and losses on investments that are recognised as income are transferred to
net assets atiributable to unitholders and are not assessable and distributable until realised. Capital losses
are not distributed to unitholders but are retained to be offset againsl any realised capiial gains.

m) Gooeds and services tax (GST)

The GST incurred on the costs of various services provided to the Responsible Entity by third parties
such as audit fees, custodial services and investment management fees, have been passed onto the
Scheme. The Scheme qualifies for Reduced Input Tax Credits (RITC’s) at a rate of 75%.

Hence investment management fees, custodial fees and other expenses have been recognised in the
statement of financial performance net of the amount of GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation
Office (ATQ). Accounts payabie are inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from the
ATO is included in receivabie in the balance sheet. Cash flows refating to GST are inciuded in the cash

flow statement on a gross basis.

The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities recoverable or payable
to the ATO is classified as an operating cash flow.

u} Applications end redemptions

Applications received for units in the Scheme are recorded when units are issued in the Scheme.
Redemptions from the Scheme are recorded when the cancellation of units redeemed oceurs. Unit
redemption prices are determined by reference of the net assets of the Scheme divided by the number of
units on issue.

a) Taxation

Under current legislation, the Scheme is not subject to income tax provided the distributable income of
the Scheme is fully distributed either by way of cash or reinvestment (ie Unitholders are presently
entitled to the income of the Scheme).

The price of a unit is based upon market values of underlying assets and thus may include a share of
unrealised capital gains, Should such a gain be realised, that portion of the gain that is subject to capital
gains tax will be distributed so that the Scheme is not subject to capital gains tax. Realised capital losses
are not distributed to unitholders but are retained in the Scheme to be offset against any realised capital
gains. If realised capital gains exceed realised capital losses, the excess is distributed to unitholders,

p) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration
received net of issue costs associated with the borrowing. Afier initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed.
Amortised cost is calcuiated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on
settlemnent.
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3 INTEREST INCOME AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLDERS

a) Non-Interest income 30 June 2008 38 June 2007
Consolidated Scheme Consaolidated Scheme
h) 3 h) 3
Changes in the fair value of investments 28,379 - 377,052 -
Other income:
Default management fees 1,724,208 1,724,208 3,497,077 3,497,077
QOther income 281,741 281,741 448,637 448,637
2,005,84¢ 2,005,949 3,945 714 3,945,714
b} Interest inceme
2008
Consclidated Scheme
Average Avernge Average Average
balance Income rate balance Incame rafe
$ s %o s $ Y%
Cash assets 25,331,798 1,504,559 5.94% 25,302,766 1,501,881 5.94%
Loans and advances 722,514,861 81,612,059 11.30% | 722514, 86} 81,645,181  11.30%
747,846,659 83,116,618 11.11% | 747,817,627 83,147,064 11.11%

2007
Consolidated
Average Average Averape
baiance Income rate bairnce
. $ $ Yo 5
Cash assets 61,964,147 31,449 423 5.57% 61,515,754
Loans and advances 819,492,029 80,704,491 9.85% | 819992024

Scheme
Average
Encome rate
g %

3,424,562 5.57%
BE 106,122 9.89%

881,456,176 84,153,914 9.55% | BBI,507,778

84,530,684 9.59%

30 June 2007

Scheme Consolidated Scheme

$ . §

(47984582 59,202,071 59,202,071

4,659,322 4,959,322

¢) Distributions to unitholders 38 June 2008
Consolidated
s $
Distributions paid 47,984,582 :
Distributions payable 3,305,015 3,365,015
51,289,597

51,289,597 64,161,393 64,161,393

2]
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4. OTHER EXPENSES 30 June 2008 36 June 2007
Consolidated Scheme Consolidated Scheme
3 § § 3
Loar origination expenses 9,410,607 9,410,607 3,381,487 3,381,487
Auditor’s remuneration 236,001 236,001 196,441 196,441
Product disclosure statement production costs 62,972 62,972 134,413 134,413
Other expenses 682,126 681,220 507,711 507,429
10,391,706 10,390,800 4,220,052 4,219,770
5. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION 30 June 2008 30 June 2067
Consolidated Scheme Consolidated Scheme
5 $ b 3
Audit and review of the financial reports 219,235 219,235 182,464 182,464
Other regulatory audit services 16,766 16,766 13,977 13,977
236,001 236,001 196,441 196,44}
These expenses have been inciuded within ‘Other Expenses” in the Income Statement,
6. CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS
Allunits in the Scheme are attributed with & value of $1. The units on issue in the Scheme and the
consolidated entity are equal. Movements in number of units and net assets attributable to unitholders
during the year were as follows:
30 Jure 2008 30 June 2067
Scheme Scheme
# § # g
Net assets atiributable to
unitholders
Class A
Opening balance 389,274,637 389,274,637 522,574,849 522,574,849
Units issued during the year 47,186,284 47,186,284 65,204,786 65,204,786
Units redeemed during the (189,724,646) (189,724,646) {215,046,454) (215,046,454)
ear
{Jnits issued upon 11,259,497 11,259,497 16,541,456 16,541,456
reinvestment of disiributions
Closing Balanee 257,995,772 257995772 389,274,637 389,274,637
Class B
Opening balance 394,050,000 394,050,000 355,100,000 355,100,000
Units issued during the year 93,870,624 93,870,624 171,550,000 171,550,000

Units redeemed during the
year

Units issued upon
reinvestment of distributions
Clusing Balanee

(269,170,624)

(269,170,624)

(132,600,600)

(132,600,000)

218,756,600

218,750,000

394,050,600

394,050,000
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30 June 2008 30 June 2007
Scheme Scheme
# g # s
Class C
Opening balance - - - -
Units issued during the year 4,725,809 4,725,809 - -
Units redeemed during the
vear {33,666) (53,666) - -
Units issued upon
reinvestment of distributions 934 934 - -
Change in fair value of
derivatives - {40,606) - -
Clesing Balance 4,673,077 4632471 - -
30 June 2008 36 June 2007
Scheme Scheme
TOTAL # g # 5
Opening balance 783,324,637 783,324,637 877,674,849 877,674,849
Units issued during the
year 145,782,717 145,782,717 236,754,786 236,754,786
Units redeemed during the
year {458,948,936) {458,948,936) {347,646,453) {347,646,453)
Units issued on
reinvestment of
distributions 11,260,431 11,260,431 16,541,456 16,541,456
Transfers to and from the
income stalement - {1,491,783) - -
Change in fair value of
derivatives - {40,606) - -
Closing Balance 481,418,849 479,886,460 783,324,637 783,324,637

Class A consists of unit holders who are entitied to receive the declared distribution rate. There are a
number of subclasses attached 1o class A.

Class B consists of related scheme unit holders. The distribution rate will be determined by the Funds
Committee which is appointed by the Responsible Entity. The Responsible Entity has the discretion to
waive the whole or part of the 1% trailing commission and the whole or part of its management fee for
this class of unit holders.

Ciass C consist of unit holders who have invested in foreign currencies and are entitled to recsive the
deciared distribution rate. There are a number of subclasses attached to class C,

All unitholders are entitled to receive distributions as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per unit at unitholders” meetings. In the event of winding up of the Scheme, all unitholders rank
after creditors and are equally entitled to the proceeds of fiquidation,

On the 3 March 2009, the manager announced that the fund will be paying any withdrawal requests up to
365 days after maturity.
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Redemptions of the Scheme are currently not suspended. At 30 June 2008 §! 5,117,968 of redemptions
had been requested by unitholders but not yet paid. Of the total requested redemptions $7,303,508
related to requests occurring within thirty days of year end. $7,814,460 had been reguested more than 30
days prior to year end. Redemptions also rank behind repayment of external financing facilities as
detailed in Note 2(a).

7.  DISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLDERS

30 Jure 2008 30 Fune 20087

BDistributions $ §
Class A 24,431,419 34,369,906
Class B 26,825,153 29,791,489
Class C 33,025 -

51,289,597 64,161,395
8. INVESTMENTS 20068 2008 2007 2007

Consclidated  Scheme  Consolidated Scheme
$ 3 b $

Financial assets held at fair value
through profit and loss (i) . - 5,654,350 -

Investment in subsidiary (if) - 1 - i
- 1 5,654,350 i

i). At 30 June 2008, the consolidated entity held nil units in the PM Capital Enhanced Yield Fund
(2007: 4,978,736 units). The unit price at 30 June 2007 was $1.1357.

g, LOANS AND RECEIVABLES 30.3une 2008 36 June 2007
Consolidaied Scheme Consolidated Scheme

3 $ $ 5

604,441,259 604,441,259 835,530,336  £35.530.336
5,100,000 5,100,000 - 6,000,000
(2,716521)  (2,716,521)  (1,025,255)  (1,025,255)

Secured Mortgage Loans
Other Unsecured Loans - related party
Provision for impairment

Net loans and advances 606,824,?38 606,824,738 834,505,03] 840,505,081

2} Aggregate amounts receivable from
reiated parties
Directors and director-related entities

Other related entities - . - 6,000,000
Related managed investment schemes - - - -
Provision for impairment - - - -
LM Managed Performance Fund 7,008,047 7,008,047 - -

7,008,047 7,008,047 - 6,000,000
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9. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
{(Continued)

b} Maturity analysis — Secured Mortgage

Loans
Less than 3 months
3-6 months
6-12 months
12-18 months
18-24 months
24-36 months
36-48 months
48-60 months

¢} Concentration of risk

As at 30 June 2008 no individual loan was greater than 10% of net assets atiributable to unit holders.

- For concentration of risks relating to mortgage type and geographical location refer to note 16.

d) Provisions for impairment

The impairment loss expense relating to loans and receivables comprises:

Specific provision

Coliective impairment provision
Impairment losses realized directly in the
Income Statement

Specific Provision

Opening balance

Impairment losses provided for during year
Utilisation of provisions (loans realized)
Ciosing balance

Colleciive impairment provision

Opening balance

Impairment losses provided for during year
Closing balance

TOTAL PROVISION

30 June 2008 30 June 2007
Consclidated Scheme Consolidated Scheme
3 3 3 $
207,820,725 207,820,725 201,435,919 201,435,919
87,953,294 97,953,294 144,628,228 144,628,228
143,723,462 143,723,462 54,191,912 54,191,912
101,817,897 101,817,897 224,938,707 224,938,707
24,482,446 24,482 446 49,981,868 49,081,868
28,643,435 28,643,435 68,573,704 68,573,704
- - 51,154,823 51,154,823
- - 40,625,175 40,625,175
604,441,259 504,441,259 835,530,336 835,530,336
3,278,509 3,278,509 1,543,070 1,543,670
2,876,402 2879375 1,020,172 1,020,172
6,154,911 6,157,884 2,563,242 2,563,242
36 June 2008 38 Fune 2007
Consolidated  Scheme  Consclidated Scheme
b $ $ $
1,025,255 1,025,225 1,707,999 1,707,999
3,278,509 3,278,509 1,543,070 1,543,070
{1,587,243) (1,587,241) (2,225,814) (2,225.814)
2,716,521 2,716,521 1,025,255 1,025,255
2,716,521 2,716,521 1,025,255 1,625,255
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The collective provision for impairment is calculated by placing loans into pools with similar risk
characteristics and collectively assessing for impairment.

Movement in Defauit loans

Gross default loans opening balance 83,826,384 83826384 42,661,029 42,661,029
New and increased default loans 59,907,804 59,907,804 103,145,841 103,145,841
Balances written off (754,152) (754,132)  (1,020,709)  (1,020,709)
Returned to performing or repaid {41,820,383) (41,820,383) (60,959,777)  (60,959,777)
Gross default loans closing balance 101,159,653 101,159,653 83,826,384 83,826,384
Speﬁjﬁc prOViSiﬂn (2!7 1 6’52 ! ) (297 i 6!52 1 ) ( ! !925!254) {l y0257254)
Net default losns 98,443,132 98,443,132 82,801,130  8280i;130

Further, the Directors of the Responsible Entity are in the process of finalising the sale of secured
property in relation to default loans totalling NIL (2007: $21,381,314) at balance date.

On 28 August 2008, it was resolved by the Board of Directors of the Responsible Entity, to transfer three
mortgage foans to the value of $33,513,345 and the related first mortgage security to the LM Managed
Performance Fund (LM MPF). There is a fixed charge over these three specific secured properiies plus a
floating charge over the remaining assets of LM MPF to provide security to the Schieme in the event of
default by the LM MPF. This loan between the Scheme and LM MPF is interest bearing at 10%, with the
interest being capitalised and due to be repaid to the Scheme on 30 June 2009.

At 30 June 2008 the balance of loans that were%‘zzst duwmired were $63,789,822 (2007:
$77,077,546). As per the scheme’s policy, loans are impaired once they exceed 90 days overdue.

At 30 Junc 2008 §11;949,198 of loans were individually impaired, with a total impairment loss of
$1,616,521. These Joans have been determined impeired based on loans with payments overdue by
greater than 90 days.

Loans are secured by land, development property or completed construction property. The fair va"]i_x_é_faf
‘securi rloans that are past due but not impaired at 30 June 2008 was $73,192,466 (2007

Interest on arrears loans is suspended and not brought to account if the RE considered that the amounts
are not uitimately recoverable from the sale proceeds of the property. The amount of suspended inierest
a1 30 June 2008 totalled $3,078,983 (2007: $1,318,418).

{1 PAYABLES 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
Conselidated  Scheme  Cygpsolidated  Scheme
3 3 $ g
Audit and compliance fees payable 85,750 85,750 39,250 39,250
Foreign currency awaiting investment 445982 445982 . . .
Other payables 347,064 347,064 442502 464016
878,796 878,796 481,752 503,266
26
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iL INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

30 June 2008 30 June 2007
Consolidated Schieme Consolidated Scheme
) $ 3 $
Secured bank loan 150,000,000 150,000,000 90,446,662 90,446,662

On 4 February 2009, the Directors of the Responsible Entity, LM investment Management Limited of the

Scheme and the Scheme’s external financier negotiated extended terms for the $150 million facility which
matured on 30 November 2008. This revised facility expires on 31 July 2009, the facility has two tranches,
Tranche A §75 million and Tranche B $75 million. A condition on revised facility is full repayment of the

facility by 31 July 2009 in line with the agreed repayment plan, as disclosed in note 2(a).

The interest rate payable on the extended facility is BBSY + 4% per annum in relation to Tranche A and
BBSY +7.5% per annum in relation to Tranche B. In the event that the repayment is not made in accordance
with the repayment plan mentioned above, the interest rate payable on Tranche A is increased to BBSY +
6% and on Tranche B it is BBSY + 9.5%. As noted in not 2(a) above, the Scheme has not made the first
repayment required under the revised facility and as such is currently in breach, this has resulted in the
triggering of the increased interest levels being payable on the outstanding principai detailed above.

12, RELATED PARTIES

Responsible Entity

The Responsible Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Limited
(ABN 68 077 208 461). Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on
behalf of the Responsible Entity by LM Administration Pty Ltd, an associate of the Responsible Entity.
LM Administration Pty Ltd is paid a management fee directly from the Scheme,

Custodian
The Custodian of the Scheme is Trust Company of Australia Limited.

Directors

The names of each person holding the position of director of LM Investment Management Limited
during the financial year are disclosed in Note 15.

Direciors’ remuneration

No amounts are paid by the Scheme directly to the directors of the Responsible Entity. The amount of
remuneration paid by the Responsible Entity and its related parties to directors of the Responsibie Entity in
connection with their responsibilities for the Scheme is separately identified in Note 15,

Directors’ holdings of units

The interests of LM Investment Management Limited and its associates in the Scheme at year-end are set
out below.
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30 June 2008 36 June 2007
~ Consolidated Scheme  Consolidated  Scheme
% $ $ $ 3
i - LM Investment Management Limited - - - -
: - Directors and director related entities - . 20,017 20,017
- Other Associates of LM Investment
Management Limited 218,750,600 218,750,000 394,050,000 394,050,000

Investing activities

The Scheme may purchase and sell units in other approved schemes or investment entities operated by
LM Investment Management Limited or its associates in the ordinary course of business at application
and redemption prices calculated in accordance with the constitutions of those schemes. At 30 June 2008
the Scheme had no investments in other schemes operated by LM Invesiment Management Limited or its

affiliates (2007: nil).

Otiter transactions with the Scheme

From time to time the directors of LM Investment Management Limited, or their director-related entities,
may invest or withdraw from the Scheme. These investinents or withdrawals are on the same terms and
conditions as those entered into by other Scheme investors. Apart from the details disclosed in this note,
no director has entered into a material contract with the Scheme since the end of the previous financial

| year and there were no material contracts involving directors’ interests subsisting at year-cnd.

Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on behalf of the Responsible
Entity by LM Administration Pty Ltd, an associate of the Responsible Entity, LM Administration Pry Lid
is paid a management fee for these services directly from Scheme assets.

During the year, loan origination fees received by the borrowers within the Scheme were $10,008,488
(2007: $3,625,686) of which $9,410,607 was reimbursed by the Scheme to the Respounsible Entity for the
administration of loan origination services (2007: $3,381,487).

During the year the scheme advanced funds to a related scheme, the LM Managed Performance Fund, (o
finance a joint venture entered into with a borrower of the Scheme. At 30 June 2008 the balance of the
loan o the related Scheme was $7,008,047 (2007: $4,725,000), which is secured by first morigage of the
assets of the unrelated borrower and by a guarantee from the LM Managed Performance Fund. This loan
has been subject to the normal credit approval review procedures of the Scheme,

The LM Managed Performance Fund has second mortgages on loans that are first mortgages of the LM
First Mortgage income Fund totalling $31,024,921 (2067: 18,718,980). The LM Managed Performance
Fund may on occasion pay development and construction costs on those reiated loans. As part of the
normal role as second mortgagee, the related scheme will fund interest payments from time to time
within approved loan facility fimits. During the 30 June 2008 year, interest payments totalling
$3,955,100 (2007: $2,803,688) were paid from the related scheme on behalf of the borrowers,
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On 28 August 2008, it was resoived by the Board of Directors of the Responsibie Entity, to transfer three
mortgage loans to the value of $33,513,345 and the refated first morigage security to the LM MPF. There
is a fixed charge over these three specific secured properties plus a floating charge over the remaining
assets of LM MPF to provide security to the Scheme in the event of default by the LM MPF, This loan
between the Scheme and LM MPF is interest bearing at 10%, with the interest being capitalised and due
to be repaid to the Scheme on 30 June 2009,

At 30 June 2008, management assigned a $5, 100,000 receivable within the Scheme from LMIM to LM

Managed Performance Fund. The loan will accrue interest ay 10% per annum and is for a period of 12
months, expiring on 30" June 2009.
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Yotal remuneration received or due and
receivahle

L3

Fees for the year paid directly to LM
Administration Pty Ltd

Expenses including administration
expenses incurred by the Responsible
Entity and its associated entities, which
are reimbursed in accordance with the
provisions of the Constitation.

Expenses including administration
expenses incurred by LM Administration
Pty Ltd, which are reimbursed in
accordance with the provisions of the
Constitution.

Loan origination fees received by
borrowers within the Scheme that were
reimbursed to the Responsible Entity for
the administration of loan origination
Services

Custodian’s remuneration

Custodian’s fees paid by the Scheme

Balance wiih related pariies
Aggregate amounts receivable from related
parties by the Scheme were as follows:

LM Administration Pty Ltd (management
fees prepaid by the Scheme)(i/

LM MIF Investments Pty Limited (i)
Australian International investments Pty
Limited (7ii)

LM Managed Performance Fund (iv)

30 June 2008
Consolidated Scheme
$ $
5,801,477 5,801,477
826,743 826,743
9,410,667 3,381 487
157,876 157,876
6,716,960 6,716,960
7,780,093 7,780,093
5,100,000 5,100,000

30 June 2007
Ceonsclidated Scheme

£ 3
9,934,860 9,934,860
386,755 386,755
9.410,607 3,381,487
185,054 185,054
2,793,556 2,793,556
- 6,000,000
2,520,000 2,520,000

i) These amounts are included in prepayments of $7,845,017 at 30 June 2008. No amounts are payable
to related parties by the Scheme. The average monthiy balance of prepayments during the year was

i

fl).

$6,632,631 (2007: $7,204,945) which was non-interest bearing. Interest foregone on the above

amount if caleulated at the weighted average cash rate of 5.94% would have been $393,578 (2607

$401,315). If this revenue had been collected, the sum foregone would have been paid to LM

Administration Pty Ltd as management fees during the veat.

LM MIF Investments Pty Limited had an unsecured interest bearing loan with the Scheme. This

facility was entered into on an arms Jength basis and is on normal terms and conditions.

Peter Charies Drake is a director and guarantor of Australian International Investment Services Pty

Ltd which is a joint borrower in a loan facility outstanding to the Scheme as at 30 June 2008 for

$7,780,093 (2007: £2,520,000). This transaction was approved on an arms fength basis and is on

normal terms and conditions.
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iv).  This amount relates to release of debt from .M Administration to LM MPF which was originally a
prepayment of management fees from the scheme to LM administration. This transaction was

approved on an arms length basis and is on normal terms and conditions.

Unitholder investing activities

Details of holdings in the Scheme by LM Investment Management Limited, its affiliates including

directors and director related persons or other schemes mana

are set out below:

Entity

36 June 2008

LM Currency Protected Australian
income Fund

LM Institutional Currency Protected
Australian Income Fund

LM Managed Performance Fund
LM Wholesale First Morigage
Income Fund

Harold Ward

Total

Entity

30 June 2007

L.M Currency Protected Austratian
Income Fund

LM institutional Currency Protecied
Australian Income Fund

LM Managed Performance Fund
LM Wholesale First Mortgage
income Fund

LM investment Management Lid
James and Pamelz Craig

Harold Ward

Total

ged by LM Investment Management Limited

Investment Irterest Units issued Units Distributions
atyearend  held inthe  during the redeemed paid and
# scheme at year during the payable
vear end yesr
119,300,000 24.78% 43,500,000 £5,70D0,600 14,041,838
7,500,000 1.56% 14,150,000 35,400,000 2,023,890
450,000 3.09%  29420,624 33,770,624 395,977
51,500,000 19.01% 6,800,000 114,300,000 10,362,449
- - 251 20,268 251
208,750,000 45.44% 93,870,875 260,190,892 26,824 405
Investment  interest Units isswed  Units Distributions
2t yearend  held in the during the redecmed peid and
# scheme at yesr during the payable
vear end vear '
161,500,000  19.30% 109,400,000 14,900,000 9244 308
28,750,000  3.44% 32,050,000 3,300,000 216,401
4,800,000 0.57% 22,100,000  22400,000 716,572
199,000,060 23.78% 8,060,000 92,000,000 18,914,207
- - 4,510 196,648 3,207
. . 10,961 325,705 8,828
20,017 5.00% 1,568 1,551 1,664
394,070,817 47.09% 171,567,038 133,123,905 29,805,187
31
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13. RECEIVABLES 36 Jine 2008 30 June 2007
Consolidated Scheme  Consolidated Scheme
$ $ ¥ 5
Interest and distribution receivable 54,641 34,641 62,609 -
Mortgage interest receivable 1,727,883 1,727,883 1,899,384 1,899 384
Penalty interest receivable 51,531 51,531 114,776 114,776
Default management fees receivable 2,702,333 2,702,333 4,834,917 4,834,917
GST receivable 84,908 84,908 85,314 85,314
Other 176,494 176,493 - -

4,797,796 4,797,789 6,997,000 6,934,391}

14. CASH ANy CASH EQUIVALENTS

30 June 2008 30 June 2007
Consolidated Scheme  Consolidated Scheme
§ $ b 3

#) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise:
- Cash at bank and in hand 14,643,332 14,643,332 28,593,772 28,332,244

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is $14,643,332 (20067 $28.,593,772).

b} Reconciliation of change in net assets attributable to unitholders to net cash fows from
operating activities

30 June 2008 38 June 2007
Consolidate

d Scheme Consolidated Scheme

$ 1) g 3
Change in net assets attributable to
unitholders - - - -
Adfustments for.
Non cash impairment expense 6,154,911 6,157,884 2,563,242 2,563,242
Mon cash interest income {59,070,947)  (59,104,073) (49,095,677)  (49,497,308)
Distributions to unitholders 51,289,597 51,289,597 64,161,393 64,161,393
{Increase)/decrease in interest and
distribution recetvable 2,481,469 2,418,863 (2,908,324) (2,845,715}
(increase)/decrease in other receivables (9,745,107)  (5,745,107) 1,500,567 1,436,935
Increase/(decrease) in payables 397,044 375,530 {465,067) (369,400)
{Over)/Under distributions (1.491,783)  (1,491,783)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating
activities (0.984,816)  (10,099,089) 15,756,134 15,449,147

¢} Reinvestment of distributions
During the financial year, the Scheme issued 11,260,431 units (2007: 16,541,455) as a result of reinvestment
of distribution by unitholders totaling $11,260,431 (2007: $16,541,489). These transactions have not been
included in the Cash Fiow Statement,
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15. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
{b) Details of Key Management Personnel
(i) Key Management Personnel

The Key Management Personne! (“KMP”) of the Scheme were deemed to be the Directors of the Responsible
Entity. The Directors of the Responsible Entity during the year were:

Executive directors

Mr Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1997

Ms Lisa Marge Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003

Mr Eghard van der Hoven Appointed 22 June 2006

Ms Francene Maree Mulder Appointed 30 September 2006

Nor-executive direciors

Mr John Dilion Appointed 8 June 2005; resigned 28 August 2008
Mr John Vallander Llewellyn Appointed 1 June 2007; resigned ] July 2008

Mr John O’Suflivan Appointed 28 November 2007

(¢} Compensation of Key Management Personnel
() Compensation Policies and Principles

Remuneration of KMP is paid by LM Administration Pty Lid, appointed by LM Investment Management
Ltd as per its service agreement with that entity. The KMP do not receive any remuneration directly
from the Scheme and there are no agreements in place between the KMP and the Scheme. The
remuneration of KMP as disclosed below has been allocated based on the each KMP’s cost of
remuneration applicable fo the Scheme. The principles used to allocate these costs (for disclosure
purposes only) are discussed below,

(i) Executive Directors

The Executive Directors of the Board of the Directors of LM Investment Management Ltd are
responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the KMP of the Responsible
Entity. The Executive directors assess the appropristeness of the nature and amount of emoluments of the
KMP on a periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with the overall
objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality board. It is
mntended that the manner of paymeni chosen witl be optimal for the recipient without creating undue cost
for the Responsible Entity.

It 15 the Executive Directors’ poiicy that employment agreements shall onfy be entered into with the
Executive Directors of the Responsible Entity, but with no other parties.

(iii}  Non- executive directors

Fees paid to non-executive directors are based on decisions made by the Executive Directors, This takes
into account workload requirements and responsibilities of each Director, Fees for duties as Directors are
not paid te executive Directors as their remuneration is provided as part of their normal terms and

conditions.
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fiv} Principles of KMP Remuneration Allocations

For all schemes managed by the Responsible Entity, the cost of tota! KMP remuneration has been
aflocated to each scheme. The Responsible Entity has estimated the amount of time spent by each KMP
performing responsibilities and duties to individual schemes, and on a percentage basis, has atlocated the
remuneration cost to each scheme. Where a KMP has not spent time specifically on 2 scheme, but rather
has acted in a role as KMP of the Responsible Entity oniy, remuneration cost has been allocated evenly
across ail schemes.
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Compensation by category: Key Management Personnel

2008 2008 2007 2007
Consolidated Scheme Consolidated Scheme

3 $ $ 3
Short term 122,723 122,723 54,832 54,832
Post employment 11,045 11,045 4,965 4,965
Other long term - - - -
Termination benefits - - - -
Equity based payment - - - -
Other - - - -

133,768 133,768 59,797 59,797

Leans to Specified KMP

The Scheme has not made, guaranteed or secured, directly or indirectly any loans to the KMP or their
related entities during the period.

(d} Other Transactions and Balences with Specified KMP

Other than those items disclosed in the related party note 11, the Scheme has no other transactions
and balances with specified KMP.

16, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
a) Financial Risk Management Objectives, Policies, and Processes

Risks arising from holding financial instruments are inherent in the Scheme’s activities, and arc
managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement, and monitoring. The scheme is
exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, and market risk.

Financial instruments of the Scheme comprise investments in financia! assets for the purpose of
generating a return on the investment made by unitholders, in addition to derivatives, cash and cash
equivalents, net assets attributable to unitholders, and other financial instruments such as trade debtors
and creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The Responsible Entity is responsible for identifying and controlling the risks that arise from these
financial instruments.

The risks are measured using a method that refiects the expected impact on the resulis and net assets
attributable to unitholders of the Scheme from reasonably possible changes in the relevant risk
variables. Information about these risk exposures at the reporting date, measured on this basis, is
disclosed below. Information sbout the total fair value of financial instruments exposed to risk, as well
as compliance with established investment mandate limits, is also monitored by the Responsible Entity.
These mandate limits reflect the investment strategy and market environment of the Scheme, as well as
the jevel of risk that the Scheme is willing to accept,

ki)
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This information is prepared and reported to relevant parties within the Responsible Entity on a regular
basis as deemed appropriate, including the fund manager, compliance manager, other key management,
Risk and Investment Committees, and ultimately the Board of Directors of the Responsible Entity,

As part of its risk management strategy, the Scheme uses foreign exchange contracts to manage
exposures resulting from changes in foreign currencies.

Concentrations of risk arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with
the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities,
or activities in the same geographic region, or have simiiar economic features that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political, and
other conditions.

In order to avoid excessive cancentrations of risk, the Scheme monitors its exposure fo ensure
concentrations of risk remain within acceptable levels and either reduces the EXPOSUre Or Hses
derivative instruments and collateral to manage the excessive concentrations when the arise,

B} Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to the financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the Scheme to incur a financial joss.

With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of the Scheme, other than derivatives, the
Scheme’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with the current exposure
equal to the fair value of these instruments as disclosed in the Balance Sheet, This does not represent
the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values, but best
represents the current maximum exposure at the reporting date.

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, fmited to those with positive
fair values.

The Scheme minimizes credit risk by:

* undertaking credit assessment procedures on prospective borrowers

- dealing with Australian regulated banks for cash balances;

- obtaining independent valuations for all foans; and

- maintaining an average loan 1o valuation ratio not exceeding 75% of the mortgage securities.

Atyear end, 76% of the balance of mortgage loans is secured on construction/development property
(2007: 66%) and 24% on commercial property (2007 34%).

37

471



Page 42 of 52 Docld: 625519022 Org No:089 343 284

Risk concentrations of credit risk

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by counterparty and by geographical region. The percentage

of loans secured by property in different geographical locations is as follows:

2008 2067
Sydney CBD 0.00% 0.00%
Within 40km of Sydney CBD 11.03% 20.30%
New South Wales — Other 21.29% 15.37%%
Melboumne — CBD 0.00% 0.00%
Within 40km of Melbourne CBD 7.22% 8.82%
Victoria — Other 2.34% 2.13%
Brisbane CBD 0.00% 0.00%
Within 40km of Brisbane CBD 2101% 1.92%
Queensland — Other 39.80% 34.58%
Canberra — Other 1.29% 5.35%
Northern Territory 5.47% 5.18%
South Australia 0.00% 0.00%
Western Australia 9.00% 5.63%
Tasmania 0.45% 0. 72%

100.00% 160.00 %

The maximum credit risk exposure at year end in relation to mortgage loan is the carrying value of
the assets as indicated in the balance sheet. No single mortgage investment exceeds 10% of the
Scheme which ensure that there is no concentratior of risk.

The scheme has a concentration of credit risk relating to the derivative instruments as all foreign
currenicy swaps are entered into with the same counterparty.

Credit quality of morigage loans

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Scheme using internal risk rating categories in
accordance with the investment mandate of the Scheme. The scheme’s exposure in each category is
monitored on a daily basis. This review process allows the Responsible Entity to assess the potential

loss as a result of risks and take corrective action.
The Scheme has taken possession of $59.7M of assets during the year by taking possession of

collateral it holds as security or calling on other credit enhancements such as guarantees. Assets
obtained had all been sold as at 30 June 2008.

¢} Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Scheme may not be able to meet its obligations in relation to
investment activities or funding unit holder redemptions.

The scheme invests in first mortgage commercial/industrial loans with an average loan maturity of 20
months (2007: 23 months). The nature of the investments entered into by the scheme commands that
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liquidity be managed cautiousty and aligned to the redemptions policy outlined within the
constitution of the scheme. At 30 June 2008, the redemptions requested from unitholders was
$135,309,573 (2007:8nil).

The Responsible Entity employs risk management strategies to ensure that the Scheme is able to meet
its obligations as above. The liquidity risk associated with the need to satisfy unitholders requests
for redemptions are mitigated by offering fixed term investment periods for investors and by
maintaining sufficient cash funds to satisfy usual levels of demand for ai-call investments.

In order to minimise liquidity risk, management assesses and monitors the liquidity requirements of
both unitholder redemptions and investment activities and ensures that at all times the Scheme as
adequate cash and cash equivalents fo cover fund obligations and that liquidity is managed within the
Scheme’s policies and limits.

Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities of the scheme comprise trade and other payables, distributions payable, net assets
attributable to unitholders, fair value of foreign exchange contracts and the secured bank loan. Trade

and other payables and distributions payable have no contractual maturities but are typicaliy settled
within 30 days. Foreign exchange contracts mature within 12 months of year end.

INet assets attributable to unit holders mature over the following periods:

Period from 30 June 2008 Value

< |2 months 411,664,669
12-24 months 67,322,424
24.36 months 1,946,273
3648 months 418, 170
>48 months 29,707
Total 481,378,243

The secured bank loan (note 12) is repayable by 31 July 2009, as detailed in note 2(a). When drawn,
the loan is secured by the assets of the Scheme.

d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Aows of financial instruments will fiuctuate
due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices.
Market risk is managed and monitored using sensitivity analysis, and minimised through ensuring
that all investment activities are undertaken in accordance with established mandate limits and
investment strategies.

3%
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows
or the fair value of financial instruments. The Scheme has established limits on investments in
interest bearing assets, which are monitored on a daily basis.

The Scheme’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effect weighted average interest rate for classes of
financial assets and financial liabilities is set out befow:

40

474



288

519022 Org No:08% 343

5

Page 45 of 52 Docld: G2

“BuLivaq 1S2U1U1-UOU BT SIJIQRI] PUE SIassE [BIoURUL] 110 Y

B16°SHH'6LL 65 PRO'69Y LITVLT PP LLLEW6 ¥S1 650°95T°00y ¢SV LGV 6vY

(3TP'p80°20}  (859°05°CE 1)

(z99'91v"'06) {0000000ST) - - - -
000°GOY 0 - G00°000'0 - - -
9ELOESCE]R 5T IFPPOS LETWLT'SEY  LLLEVE'VS] 650°0ST00F T8V L&v'6hY
PPTTCCBT zeCieeriopl - - - -

L60T 800Z LO0T 2007 L1807 800Z

siwad ¢ uey) 553 Jng
2U34 [ UBY) JI0W Uy 3ANIBE  JmaL [ uByy $53 1y dan)ein
0] P3YIBIHIUGY SAILINIIG 0) PRROBAILOI SHNIRIIE
ojg IIBLA JSAIIIU| PANTY

(z99's1¥°06)  (GGO0B0051)

PPTTECRT ZECERY'pI

LOBT 8007

3wy 153sauy Suyeoly

SPYLOL'ELL 16 PRO6OY LLTPLT'SEr  LLESHE PS E50°95T00Y  T8YLEYEPY

(068727819} ($90°05c5e )

(z95%9tv°06)  {0DD'000-054Y - - - -
9EC'0ES'SE8 65T 4P HO9 LLTVPLT'SEr  LLL'SPE'VST  6S0'0ST'00F  Z8%°'Lév'6by
TLLE6S'8T  ZEE'EP9'F - - - -

L06T 800T 4087 8007 L0ooz 8007

saga4 ¢ By ssa| yng
duak § ey aa0w uparnjuw dead g HBU) SSIf Uj adnjet
0] PAI2BIIUOD SANINIDG 0} PAIIBLIUOD SINYLINIFG
1830} 9)8J 15343)H] paxiy

(z99°01t"06) ~ (B00O0000LT)
TLL'EBS'BT  TEE'Cve'pl

L80T 8002

I
9 it 6 Alijise] UeoT§
£9 - 01 URO| panaasun)
686 011 & (55018) sueo| afeBiiow pamaag
Lee  pe's (g 19558 ys87)
% %
L00Z 800Z
TR TS RENH] 30y
adriaar
panydrm
FWIHOS
"Buireaq jsassju-wou ore SNI[IGEI] PUB SJISSE JEIOURLL JBUI0 Y
1830
9 it 0 AYHIOB} UROY
- €6 OF1Y 6 {ss018) suwoy afefuow pamasg
LSS vy {9t siasse ysen
Yo %
LOOT  800T
SJHL )S2I3N0T  AloN
Ideiase
R TETR TN

ajuy iseasin] Juneoyg

TFALVATTOSNOD

475



Page 46 of 52 Docld: 025519022 Qrg No:089 343 288

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2007

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Scheme’s income statement to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant.

The sensitivity of the income statement is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the interest
income for one year, based on the financial instruments held at 30 June 2008.

Accoynting assariptions
The basis points sensitivity is based on the historical volatility of changes in interest rates.

2008
Change in basis points Sensitivity of interest
income (000'¢)
Increase  Decrease Increase Decrease
50 50 3,543 1,543
Financial instruments 100 160 7,086 7,086
2007
Change in basis points Sensitivity of interest
income (000's)
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
50 50 3,869 1,869
Financial Instruments 100 100 7,738 7,738

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due
to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Scheme enters into foreign exchange contracts principally to
hedge the foreign exchange risk implicit in the value of the investor funds denominated in foreign
currencies and to secure a particular exchange rate for a planned purchase or sale of investments. The term
of the contracts rarely exceeds twelve months.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts heid af 30 June 2008 was $40,606 (2007: nil). The fair value
adjustment to the carrying vaiue of these contracts of $40,606 was recognised in a derivatives reserve at 30
June 2008 (2007: nib).

The nominal Australian dollar value of forward exchange contracts held at 30 June 2008 was $4,817.423
{20607 nil).

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Scheme had significant exposure at 30 June 2008 on
its monetary assets and liabilities and forecast cash flows, The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably
possible movement of the currency rate against the Australian Dollar on the income statements, with all
other variables held constant.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Nofes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2007

Accounting Assumptions- Variability of foreign currency
The sensitivity is based on the volatility of changes in global currency.

2008
Currency AUD equivalent in Change in currency rate in | Effect on net assets attributable
exposure by currency % to unitholders
(000's) (000°s)
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
CAD 106 10 10 N H
EUR 85 10 10 9 9
GBP 1,507 10 10 151 151
JPY 155 i 10 16 16
NZD 2,179 10 10 218 218
TRY 130 10 10 13 13
USD 656 10 10 66 66

The Scheme was not subject to foreign currency risk at 30 June 2007.

Nor-Australian doliar investments in the fund are hedged in the relevant currency against Australian dollar
currency movements. The fund hedges a non-Australian doliar investment through the use of forward
foreign exchange contracts (FFEC).

The FFECs are facilitated by & global investment bank. This form of hedging reduces currency exposure to
the fund and investors. The above table is only applicable if the FEC facilitator is unable to meet its
obligation and the fund therefore seeks an alternative party to rehedge the FEC.

Eguity Risk

The Scheme is not subject to equity risk at 30 June 2008,

Cash Flow Hedges

Foreign Currency Contracts

The Scheme uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency coniracts to hedge its risks

associated with foreign currency fluctuations, The cash flows are expected to occur between 1 and 12
months. Movement in the foreign currency contract cash flow hedge reserve is detailed below:

2008 2007

s b

Opsening Balance . -
Charged to Equity 40,606 -
Closing Balance 40,606 -

Included in other expenses in the profit and loss is $1,915 of foreign currency losses due to ineffectiveness
of the cash flow hedges.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2007

15. FAIR VALUES

The Scheme’s financial assets and liabilities included in the Balance Sheet are carried at their fair value as
disciosed by class of financial instruments or at amounts that approximate their fair values.

Refer to Note 2 for the methods and assumptions adopted in determining fair valves for investments.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(&) Business segment

The Scheme is organised into one business segment which operates solely in the business of investment
management within Aostralia,

(b) Geographic segments

The Scheme operates in Australia and all directly held assets are Australian. Geographic concentrations
disclosed in Note 16,

17 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
There are no material contingent assets and liabilities or commitments as at 30 June 2008,
18. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

No significant events have occurred since balance date which would impact on the financial position of the
consolidated entity disclosed in the balance sheet as at 30 June 2008 or on the results and cash flows of the
consolidated entity for the year ended on that date, other than those detailed below:

{=) Loans transferred to LM Managed Performance Fund (MPE)

On 28 August 2008, it was resolved by the Board of Directors to transfer three mortgage loans to the value
0f$33,513,345 and the related first mortgage security to the LM MPF. There is 2 fixed charge over these
three specific secured properties plus a floating charge over the remaining assets of LM MPF to provide
security to the Scheme in the event of default by the LM MPF. This ioan between the Scheme and LM
MPF is interest bearing at 10%, with the interest being capitalised and due to be repaid to the Scheme on 30
June 2009. As mentioned in note J(b), in order to meet the repayment schedule between the Scheme and
the external financier, a proportion of this loan needs to repaid by LM MPF before 31 July 2009.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 36 June 2007

(b) Renegotiation of the Loan Facility

On 4 February 2009, the Responsible Entity, LM Investment Management Limited of the Scheme and the
Scheme’s external financier negotiated extended terms for the $150 million facility which matured on 30
November 2008. This revised facility expires on 31 July 2009, the facility has two tranches, Tranche A $75
miliion and Tranche B $75 million. A condition on revised facility is full repayment of the facility by 31
July 2009 in line with the agreed repayment plan, as disclosed in note 2(a).

The interest rate payable on the extended facility is BBSY + 4% per annum in relation to Tranche A and
BBSY + 7.5% per annum in relation to Tranche B. In the event that the repayment is not made in
accordance with the repayment plan mentioned above, the interest rate payable on Tranche A is increased
10 BBSY + 6% and on Tranche B it is BBSY + 9.5%. As noted in not 2(a) above, the Scheme has not made
the first repayment required under the revised facility and as such is currently in breach, this has resulted in
the triggering of the increased interest levels being payable on the outstanding principal detaijed above,

{c) Status of Scheme

On 3 March 2009, the Scheme was closed to new investors and the manager will pay withdrawal requests
up to 365 days afier maturity. At 9 March 2009, 360,491 946 of redemptions has been requested by
unitholders but not yet paid. Redemptions rank behind repayment of external financing facilities as
detailed in Note 2{a).
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2007

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited,
| state that:

a) The financial statements and notes of the Registered Scheme sel out on pages 7 to 40
are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporation Regulations 2001,
and

(i} giving a true and fair view of the Scheme’s financial position as at 30 June
2008, and of its performance, as represented by the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the financial year ended on that date,

b} there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Scheme will be able to pay its debis
as and when they become due and payable; and

¢} the financial statements are in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme’s
Constitution,

On behaif of the Board

LM Investment Management Limited.

Lisa Darcy

Director
Gold Coast
10 March 2009
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the members of the LM First Mortgage income Fund

Report on the Financlal Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of LM First Mortgage Income fund (“the Scheme"),
which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2008, and the income statement, statement of
changes tn equity and cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant
accounting policies, other expianatory notes and the directors’ declaration.

Directors’ Responsibliity for the Financial Report

The directors of the Responsible Entity are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards {including the Austratian
Accounting interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and
malintaining internal controls refevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that
is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error: selecting and applying appropriate
accounting poficies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. in Note
1(b3, the directors also stale that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes,
complies with international Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board.

AudHior's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards and International Standards on Auditing, These
Auditing Standards require that we comply with refevant ethicai requirements refating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie assurance whether the financiat
report Is free from material misstatement.

An audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or errar. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an epinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controis. An
audit also includes evaluafing the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabteness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaiuating the overall presentation of the
financlal report.

We befieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and apprapriaie to provide 5 basis for
our audit opinion,

independence

in conducting our audit we have met the independence requiremaents of the Cotporations Act 2001, We
have given to the directors of the Responsibte Entity a written Auditor's Independence Dediaration, a
copy of which is included in the directors’ renort.

Liabllity limited by 5 scheme approved
under Protessional Stantards Legistation
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Auditor's Opinion

in our opinion:

the financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,

including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of LM First Mortgage Income Fund at 30
June 2008 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Austrafian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations and the Corporations Regulations 2001,

Material Uncertainty Regarding Continuation as a Golng Concern

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2¢a) in the financial report which indicates that
the Scheme’s financing arrangements expired and the amount ouistanding was payable on 30 November
2008, The Respensible Entity has negotiated an extension to the facility with specific repayments
through to 31 July 2009. The first required payment was due on the 28 February 2009 and was not
made, resulting In a breach of the facility. As a result of these matters there is significant uncertainty
whether the Scheme will continue as a going concern, and therefore whether it will realise its assets and

extinguish its liabilities in-the normai course of business and at the amounts stated in the financial report,

The financial report does not include any adjusiments relating to the recoverability and classification of
recorded asset amounts or o the amounts and classification of liabilities that right be necessary should
the Scheme not continue as a going concern.

—-DM h M&\ue

Paula McLuskie
Partner
Brisbane

10 March 2009
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EM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
RESPONSIBLE ENTITY'S REPORT

The directors of LM Investment Management Limited (“the Responsible Entity™), the Responsible Entity of
LM Mortgage Income Fund (“the Scheme™), present their report together with the financial report of the
Scheme, for the year ended 30 June 2003 and the auditor's repont thereon.

Responsibie entity

The registered office and principal piace of business of the Responsible Bntity and the Scheme is Level 4,
44A Cavill Avenue, Surfers Paradise, Queensland.

LM Investment Managerent Limited has been the Responsible Eatity since registration of the scheme in
September 1999,

The directors of LM Investment Management Limited, during or since the end of the financial year, are:

Name Period of directorship

Mr Peter C Drake Appointed 31 Januvary 1997
Mr Peter Aubort Appointed 25 March 1957
Mr Geoffrey Black Appointed 31 March 1999

Mr Martyr Andrew Came " Appointed 19 July 2602

Principal activities
The Scheme s a registered managed investment scheme domiciled in Australia.

The Scheme’s principal activity for the year was receipt of unit holders’ funds and investin g them in first
registered mortgages generally secured by commercial properties and cash investments in Australia, in
accordance with the investment policy of the Scheme as outlined in the current product disclosure document,

There have been no significant changes in the nature of those acrivities during the yeatr.
The Scheme did not have any employees during the year.
Review and results of operations

During the year, the Scheme continued to invest funds directly in first registered morgage foans, secured by
commercial properties in Australia. In addition, funds under management increased by approximately $110
million as a result of the Scheme accepring applications from a reiated managed investment scheme.

Results

The financial year ended 30 June 2003 resulted in a net profit of $12,171,381 (2002: $5,186,257). An
increase in funds under management contributed to the increase in the financial result for the year.

Distributions

Distributions paid or payable by the Scheme since the end of the previous financial year were $12,171,381
{2002: § 5,226,569).
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
RESPONSIBLE ENTITY'S REPORT
Units on issue

The Scheme issued 179,732,862 units during the financial year (2002: 77,878,476), while 69,229,593
units were redeerned (2002: 21{,523,728), resulting in a balance of 210,567,901 units on jssue as at 30 June
2003 (2002: 100,064,632). The Scheme had total assets of $213,989.638 as at 30 June

2003 (2002: $161,091,971). The basis for valuation of the Scheme's assets is disclosed in Note | to the
financial statements,

State of affairs

In the opinion of the Responsible Entity, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the
Scheme that occorred during the financial year under review,

Likely developments

The Responsible Entity does not propose any changes 1o the existing business of the Scheme. The
Scheme wiil continue to pursue its policy of raising funds and investing these funds in mortgage
investments in Australia.

Environmental Regulation

The Scheme’s operations are not subject to any significant environmental reguiation under either
Commonwealth, State or Territory jegislation,

Events subsequent to balance date

Thete has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this repor any
item, transaction or event of a material and unusyal nature likely, in the opinion of the Responsible
Entity, to affect significantly the operations of the Scheme, the resulis of those operations, of the state
of affairs of the Scheme, in future financial years.

Interests of the Responsibie Entity

The following fees were paid to LM Investment Management Limited and its associates out of scheme
property during the financial year:

2063 2002
] $

®  Responsibie Entity's fees for the year received directly from 2,234,991 1,337,280
.M Mortgage Income Fund

& Responsible Entity's fees eamned by the Responsible Entity - 524,895
from other approved schemes invested in by LM Morntgage
Income Fund.

B Other expenses include administration expenses incurred by 219,817 40,315

the Responsible Entity which are reimbursed in accordance
with the provisions of the Scheme Constitution, including
Custodian fees.

The Responsible Entity and its associates hetd 63,029,006 units {2002: 5,741,510} in the Scheme at
year-end. The aggregate amount receivable from the Responsible Batity by the Scheme at year end
was 51,139,543,
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

RESPONSIBLE ENTITY’S REPORT

Irdemnities and insurance premivms for Officers or Auditors

Indemnification

Since the end of the previous financial year, the Scherme has not indemnified or made & relevant
agreement for indemnifying against a fability, any person who is or has been an officer of the
Responsible Entity, or an auditor of the Scheme.

Insurance premiums

During the financial year the Responsible Entity has paid premiums in respect of its officers for
[iability and legal expenses insurance contracts for the year ended 30 June 2003, The Responsible
Entity has paid or agreed to pay in respect of the Scheme, premiumms in respect of such insurance
contracts for the year ended 30 June 2004, Such insurance contracts insure against cersain lizbiliey
{subject to specific exclusions) for persons who are or have been the Responsible Entity or executive
officers of the Responsibie Entity. '

Details of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount of the premium paid has not been inciuded
as such disclosure is prohibited under the terms of the contracts.

Signed in accordance with o resolution of the directors of LM Investment Management Limited,

niolacos

Director Dated
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

Nate 2003 2002
$ $

jnvestment income

Dastribution income Z(a) 313,870 2,343,276

Interast income 2(ky) 15,376,511 4,824,880

Total revenue 15,690,181 7,168,156

Change in net fair value of investments - 142,661

Total investment income 15,650,381 7,310,817

Expenses .

Responsibie entity fees 8 2,234,991 1,337,260
“ Custodian fees : B 45,928 22,045

Advisor commissions 1,064,192 746,955

Other expenses 3 173,889 18,300

Total expenses 3,519,000 2,124,560

Net profit 12,171,381 5,186,257

Reconciliation of net profit

Distributions paid and payable 6 12,171,381 5,226,569

Excess distributions 5(b) - (40,312)

12,171,381 5,186,257

The starement of financial performance is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial

statements set out on pages 7 to 18.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2003

Note 2083 2002
$ $

Assets
Cash assets (b} 9,034,197 10,578,946
Receivables 1,227,029 743,577
Prepayments 8 1,139,543 -
Investmenis :

Morigage loans (a) 202,518,940 89,001,626

Unlisted registered managed investment schemes 7(b} 59,953 757,846

Other ) 9,976 6,976
Total assets 213,989 638 101,091,971
Liabilities
Payables ) 134,092 609,352
Punds received in advance 2,011,708 -
Distributions payable 6 1,458,557 600,607
Total liabilities 3,604,357 1,209,959
Net assets 210,385,2R} 99,882,012
Unit halders’ funds
Units on issue 5{a) 210,567,901 100,064,632
Excess distributions . 5(h) {182,620} (182,620
Tetal nnit holders® funds 210,385,281 89,882,012

The statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial
Statements set out on pages 7 to 18,
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2002

Cash flows from operating activilies

Interest and distributions received

Responsible Entity’s and Custodian's fees paid
Other operating cash flows

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Net payments for mortgage loans

Funds recetved in advance

Net withdrawzl fraom investment schemes
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from unithelders’ activities
Applications

Redemptions

Distributions paid

Net cash provided by unit helders® activities
Net increase in cash held

Cash at the heginning of the financial year

Cash at the end of the financinl year

MNote

W)

10{b)

2003 2002
§ $
15,205,362 6,654,722
(3,372,968) (1,404,756)
(1,743,994) (216.587)
10,088 460 5,033,379

(113.517,313)

(89,001,626}

2,011,708 -
697,892 41,339 963
(110.807,713)  (47.641,663)
176,759,523 77,061,498
{69,229,593) (21,523,728)
(8,355.366) £4.094,154)
99,174,564 51,443,616
(1,544,749} 8,835,332
10,578,946 17436014
9,034,197 10,578,946

The statement of cash flows is to be read in confunction with the notes to the Jinanciol statements set

our on pages 7 to 18.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been adapted in the preparation of this financial
Teport are:

Basis of preparation

The Scheme was constituted on 24 August 1999 and will terminate on 24 August 2079 uniess
terminated earlier in accordance with the provision of the Constitution {as amended),

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance
with Accounting Standards, Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views, other authoritative
proacuncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001,

It has been prepared on the basis of historical costs and except where stated, does not take into
account changing money values or fair values of assets.

The accounting palicies have been consistently applied and except where there is a change in
accounting policy, are consistent with those of the previous financial year,

Investinents

Investments tn unlisted managed investment schemes are carried at fair value. The net fair
value of investments in unlisted managed investment schemes is determined as the not asset
value per unit on the jast day of the financial year.

Cash assets

Cask assets includes deposits held at call with a bank or financial mstitution and highly figuid
investsments with short periods to maturity which are readily convertible to cash on hand at the
Responsible Entity's option and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value,

Mortgage loans

Mortgage loans, which are recorded at principal amount less repayments, represent amousts
zdvanced Lo other parties, which are secured by registered mortgage. The collectability of
mortgage loans is assessed and a provision made for any debts which are considered doubtful,
and for which insufficient secunity is heid to ensure the full amount of the loan ang any accrued
taterest is recoverable. The net fair value of mortgage loans approximate the carrying amount
due to the variable interest rates of these loans and/or the short term to maturity.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont)

Inceme and expenses

Interest mcome from investments in mortgage loans is brought to account or an accrual basis.,
Distribution income from investments in related managed investment schemes is brought to
account on an accrual basis. Income received in advance is deferred and brought to account
equally over the reievant period. Income, which in the opinion of the Responsible Btity is non-
recoverable, is written off. '

Changes in the net fair value of investments are recognised as income and are determined as the
difference between the fair vaiue at year-end and the fair value as at the prior period end.

" Expenses are bought to account on an acentals basis.

The Responsible Entity and Custodian are emitled under the Constitution, 1o be reimbursed for
cettain expenses incurred in administering the Scheme. The basis on which the expenses are
reimbursed is defined in the Constitution. The amount reimbursed was catculated in zccordance
with the Constitution,

Advisor Commissions

Advisor commissions are paid to unit holders® investment advisors and are calewlated as a
percentage of funds invested. These commissions are paid monthly in arrears and are bought to
account on an accruals basis.

‘Faxation

Under current legisiation, the Scheme is not subject to income tax as the taxable income is
distributed in full to the unit holders.

The Scheme fully distributes its distributable income, calculated in accordance with Scheme
constitution and applicable taxation legisiation, to the unit hotders who are presently entitled to
income under the constitution.

Goods and services tax

Responsibie Entity's fees, custodian fees and other expenses are recognised net of the amount of
goods and services tax (“GST™) recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (*ATO") as 2
reduced input tax credit (“RITC™),

Payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

Thie net arnourt of GST recoverable from or pavable to the ATO is included as current asser or
liability in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis,
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2663

2. INVESTMENT INCCME 2603 2002
{a) Non-interest revenues

Distribution income from:

Related managed investment schemes (refer Note 8) - 2,312,534

YUnrelated managed investment schemes 313,870 29,745

COther (refer Note B) - 967

313,870 2,343,276

{h) Interest revenues 2003 2002

Average Interest Average Average Interest Average

balance rate batance rale

§ $ o 5 § %
Cash assets 8,932,884 424312 4,75 4,825,782 158,712 329
Mortgage loans 138,390,677 14,952,199 10.80 A1L,172.326  4,666,;68 11.33

147,323,561 13,376,511 10.61 45,598,108 4 824,880 10.4%

3.  OTHER EXPENSES

Audit fees 28,2492 18,300
Sundry 12,543 -
Printing 110,185 -
Legal fees 22,869 -

173,889 18,300

4.  AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Audit Services:
Auditors of the scheme — KPMG:
Audit and review of the financial reports 21,262 14,500
Other repulatory audit services 7,000 3,800

28,292 18,300

These expenses have been included in other expenses in the statement of financial performance.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 36 JUNE 2003

5. UNITHOLDERS® FUNDS 2603 2002
# $ # §
(a)  Units on issue

Opening balance 100,064,632 100,064,632 43,709,884 43,709,884
Applications —cash 176,759,523 176,759,523 77,061,498 77,061,498
- reinvestiments 2,973,339 2,973 339 816,978 816,978
Redemptions {66,229,593) (69,229,593} (21,523,728} {21,523,728)
Closing balance 210,567,901 210,567,501 100,064,632 100,064,632
Class A - Opening balance 100,064,632 100,064,632 43,709,884 43,709,884
Applications - cash 94,052,223 94,052,223 77,061,498 71061 4598
- reinvestments 2,973,339 2,973,339 816,978 816,978
Redemptions {44,915603) (44,915,603} {21,523,728) (21,523,728}
Closing balance 152,174,591 152,174,591 100,064,632 100,064,632
Class B — Opening balance - - - -
Applications ~ cash 82,707,300 82,707,306 - -
- reigvestments - - - -
Redemptions (24,313,990) (24,313 94903 - -
Closing balance 58,393,310 58,393,310 - -
Totat closing bajance 214,567,901 210,567,901 100,064,632 100,064,632

Class A consists of unit holders who are entitled to receive the declared distribumtion rate.

Class B consists of unit holders with an investroent greater than $1,000,000 and are entitled to a
borus of .35% pa in addition to the current rate of distribution. The Responsible Entity has the
discretion to waivs the whole or part of the 1% trailing commissios and the whole or part of its
manggement fee for this class of unit holders.

All urit holders are entitled to received distributions as declared from time to time 2nd are
entitled to one vote per unit at unit holders’ meetings.

In the event of a winding up of the scheme, all unit holders rank afier creditors and are equally
entitled to the proceeds of Bauidation.

(b}  Excess distributiens 2003 2002
Opening balance (182.620) £142 2083
Transfers (to)/fTorn statement of financial performance - (40,312)
Closing balance {182,620) (182,620)

Excess distributions represent a return of capital under the constitution of the scheme.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003
6.  DISTRIBUTIONS

Distributions in respect of the financial year comprise:

Total distributions paid EO,712,824 4,625,962
Total distributions payable 1,458,557 600,607
12,171,381 5,226,369
As unit holders are presently entitled to the distributable income of the Scheme, no incorme tax
is payable by tie Scheme.
2003 2002
7. INVESTMENTS % %
(a) Morigage loans
Mongage ioans 202,518,840 89,001,626
AMaturity analysis
Not longer than 3 months 86,320,878 10,510,534
Longer than 3 months and not longer than 6 months 27,207,587 25,552,517
Longer than 6 months and not longer than 12 months 39,106,933 25,984,545
Longer than 12 months and not longer than 18 months 17,675,697 26,954,030
Longer than 18 months but not longer than 24 months 11,656,057 -
L.onger than 24 months but not longer than 36 months 17,636,788 -
Longer than 36 months but not longer than 48 months 2,915,600
202,518,940 9,001,626

As at 30 June 2003 there was one mortgage Joan in default with total principal of $9,576,905 outstanding.
The independent valuation of the security property completed on 27 June 2002 totalied $13,350,000 and
the loan-to-valve ratio of this mortgage loan at vear-end was 62%, Interest in relation to this mertgage
ioan has been paid by a related managed investment scheme. The directots consider this loan to be fully
recoverabie a5 the Scheme helds a registered first mortgage over the security property and do not
anticipate any capital loss, Accordingly, no provision for doubtful debts has been raised in relation to this
mortgage loan at year-end.

(b} Unlisted registered managed investment schemes

Related managed investment schemes at fair value (refer Note 8) 59,953 757846

The Scheme's investment in a related managed investment scheme is no longer earning distributions as
the refated scheme is currently being wound down and only has investinents in default mortgages. The
directors do nol anticipate any capital loss from the related managed investment scherme.

{ey Other

Related investment entity (refer Note 8) 9,975 9,976
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

8.  RELATED PARTIES
Responsible Entity

The Responsible Entity of LM Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Limited
(ABN 68 077 208 461).

Custodian
The Custodian of the Scheme is Permanent Trustee Australia Lid,
Directors

The names of each person holding the position of director of LM Investment Management
Limited during the financial year are as follows:

Name Period of directorship

Mr Peter C Drzke Appointed 31 January 1997
Mr Peter Aubort Appointed 25 March 1997
Mr Geoffrey Biack Appoinied 31 March 1999
Mr Martyn Came Appointed 19 July 2002
Lirectors’ remuneration

No amounts are paid by the Scheme directiy to the directors of the Responsible Entity, The
amount of remuneration paid by the Responsible Entity and its related parties to directors of the
responsible entity in connection with their responsibilities for the Scheme is not separately
identified.

Directors® holdings of units

The interests of LM Investment Management Limited and its associates in the scheme at year-
end are set out below.

2003 2002
$ %
LM Investment Management Limited 156,486 129,256
Associates of LM Investment Management Limited 62,878,520 5,612,251
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2603

8. RELATED PARTIES (cont)
Other transactions with the Scheme

From time 1o time directors LM Investment Management Limited, or their director-related
entities, may invest or withdraw from the Scheme. These nvestments or withdrawals are on the
same terms and conditions as those entered into by other Scheme investors.

Apart from the details disciosed in this note, no director has entered into & material contract with
the Scheme since the end of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts
involving directors’ interests subsisting at year-end.

Related party transactions
Transactions with related parties are set out below:

Responsible Entley's remuneration 2663 2002
$ 5

Total remuneration received or due and receivable: ‘
#  Responsibie Entity's fees for the vear received directly

from LM Mortgage Income Fund. 2,234,991 1.337,290
&  Respounsibie Entity’s fees camed by the Responsible Entity

from other approved schemes invested in by LM Mortgage

Inceme Fund. - 524,895
& Other expenses included administration expenses incurred

by the Respoasible Entity, which are reimbursed to the

Regponsible Entity in accordance with the provisions of the

Constitution, ’ 173,889 18,300
Custodian's remuneration
e Custedian’s fees paid by Responsible Entity and ‘

reimbursed by the scheme 45,928 22,015

Balances with related parties

The aggregate amounts receivable from related parties by the
Scheme at balance date are as follows:

LM Tnvestment Management 1td 1,139,543 -
These amounis are included in prepayments. No amounts are payable to related parties by the
Scheme.

Investing activities
The Scheme has no investment in the Responsible BEntity or its affiliates,

The Scheme may purchase and sel units in other approved schemes or jnvestment entities
operated by LM Investment Management Limited or its associates in the ordinary course of
business at application and redemption prices calculated in accordance with the constitutions of
those schemes. Details of LM Mortgage Income Fund’'s invesuments in other schemes operated
by LM Investment Management Limited or its affiliates are set out helow:
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

8 RELATED PARTIES (cont)
Sceheme name Investment at | Interest held in Change in Funds invested Funds Contribution
yeur end related scheme | fair valueof | during the year withdrawn Lo investment

8 at year end investment 3 during the year income

38 June 2003 § $ 5

LM Select Mongage

income Fund 59.953 0.73% - 697,893 -

LMQ Mortgage

Earilites 9,976 17.67% - - - -

30 June 2002

LM Select Morigage

ineome Fand 757849 5.36% £42.66] 13,521,080 55,138,352 2,312,534

LMG Morgage

Facilities 9,976 11.67% - - i 997

These investments are on normal ferms and conditions.

Unitholder investing activities

Details of holdings in the Scheme by LM Investment Management Limited, its affiliates or other

schemes managed by LM Investment Management Limited ate set out below:

Entity Investment at | Kpterest held in Unifs issued Uity THstributions

year end the scheme st | during the year redeemed paid and payable
$ vear end during the year $

36 June 2002

1.M Specisl Panicination Fynd 6,673,500 317% 4,598,300 1,862,300 733,179

Engineening House Canborra Syndicate 3,553,000 §.69% 3 481,750 823,900 219,126

Belinda J Drake 832,210 A4 922,108 - 20,527

LM Managed Performance Fusid ~ 4,520,000 2.14% 8,211,700 3,601,700 244,775

Series Cne .

LM Wholezale Mongape Income Fand 44.543,000 21 15% 62,500,000 17.957,000 2313417

LM Propeny Performance Fund 2637310 1.26% 3,460,300 892,990 124 815

LM Investment Managemen: Hong

Kong Lid 150,486 O7% 21.227 - 12,204

Tota? £3,029.006 892% §3,195.386 25,137,890 3,668,153

38 June 2002

LM Special Participation Fund 3,937,000 3.9%% 3.937.000 - 1,726

G M Dwyer - - - 114,062 992

Engineering House Canberra Syndicate £6S,150 0.89% 1,127,734 232,584 39,250

Belinda J Drake 10,101 L01% 16,121 6020 101

LM Mapaped Performance Fund F70.000 0.77% 1,565,081 1,195,080 1277

LM Investment Management Hong

Kong Lid 134,250 C.il% 129,25% - 11,758

E & T Aubort - 10.000 438

Total 5,741,510 5.74% 7175114 1.557.656 45,582
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The scheme operates predominantly in the mortzage investment industry in Auvstraiia, with
mortgages sccured by commercial propenty, The scheme operations and customers are located
within Australia,

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliztion of net cash provided by operating activities to net profit

2003 2002
$ $

Net profit 12,171,381 3,186,257
Add/(less) non-cash ttems

Changes in net fair value of investments - (142,661}
Changes in assets and liabilities during the financial year :

(Decrease)increase in payables (458,419) 533,662

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and interest recejvable (1,624,562) (543.87%)
Net cash provided by operating activities 10,088,400 5,033,379

Reconciliztion of cash
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes ¢ash on hand and at bank, and short-term

depostts at call. Cash as at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is
reconciled o the related items in the statement of financial position gs follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 9,034,197 10,578,946

Sales and purchases of securiiies

Cash flows arising from the sales and purchases of securities are presented on 2 net basis in the
statement of cash flows.

Reinvestmeni of distributions
During the financial year, the scheme issued 2,973,338 units {2002: 816,978) as a result of

reinvestment of distributions by unit hotders totaliing $2,973 339 (2002: $816,978}). These
transactions have not been included in the statement of cash fiows,
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